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REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of East Coast Furnitech Public Company Limited

Opinion

I have audited the consolidated financial statements of East Coast Furnitech Public Company Limited and
its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in shareholders® equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. In
addition, I have also audited the separate financial statements of East Coast Furnitech Public Company
Limited, which comprise the separate statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the
separate statement of comprehensive income, the separate statement of changes in shareholders” equity and
the separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of East Coast Furnitech Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries as
at December 31, 2020, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended, and the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of East Coast Furnitech Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2020, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Separate Financial Statements” section of my report. I am independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Federation of
Accounting Professions together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the
consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with such Code. I believe that the andit evidence I have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

I draw attention to (1)} Note 3 to the Financial Statements that the Company changed its method of
measurement after recognition of land, building and machinery in 2020 whereby retrospective application
and restatement is made to the 2019 comparative information and (2) Notes 4 and 6 to the Financial
Statements that the Group exercised certain mitigating measure indicated in the accounting guidance for
Temporary Mitigating Policies for Alternative Accounting on the Effects from Pandemic Situation of the
Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19), issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions and became effective
only in 2020, with respect of the exception from combining forward looking information in consideration
and measurement of the expected credit loss for the Group’s trade receivables. My opinion is not qualified
in respect of these matters.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my
audit of the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the consolidated financial statements and the
separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Valuation of Certain Investment in Subsidiary in the Separate Financial Statements

Risk description

2020 is the first year that a subsidiary, ECF Holdings Co., Ltd. (*ECF-H”), has conducted its new business
plan i.e. sales of furniture through domestic agents. However, ECF-H had loss from operations for the year
2020 and capital deficiency as at December 31, 2020 amounting to approximately Baht 8.6 million and
Baht 47.1 million, respectively. Such events primarily indicated that the Company’s investment in ECF-H ,
stated at cost of Baht 7.5 million in the scparate financial statements, may substantially impair and conduct
to significant risk that such investment may be overstated about valuation in the financial statements if
compared to its recoverable amounts to be known from result of impairment test and assessment in which
the management shall use their significant judgement, estimates, and assumptions, which is considered
complicate, to test and assess whether such investment eventually has impairment or not.

Significant accounting policies and other information relating to the aforesaid investment was disclosed in
Notes 1, 2, 4 and 10 to the financial statements.

Responses o the Risk

[ have performed the following key audit procedures as responses to the identified and assessed significant
visk in order that such risk shall be managed to appropriate and acceptable level and enable the scparate
financial statements to be free from material misstatement:

» Gather understanding and preliminarily assess the use of significant judgement, estimates, and
assumptions with respect of the test and assessment of impairment done by the management.

» Test, assess, and conclude for the reasonableness of the use of significant judgement, estimates, and
assumptions in calculation and determining recoverable amount done by the management.

%  Test mathematical accuracy of significant figures and review the appropriateness and acceptability of
the results of management’s assessment whether such investment eventually impair, with material
amount, as at the end of year.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annua) Registration Statement and the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and the separate financial statements as well as my auditor’s report thereon. The
aforesaid other information is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements does not cover
the other information and I will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements,
my responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements and the separate financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When I read the aforesaid other information, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am
required fo communicate the matter to those charged with governance in order that they shall acknowledge
and arrange the correction on such misstatement as appropriate.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
and the separate financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal confrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and the separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, the
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Separate
Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements and
the separate financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements and separate
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, 1 exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

> Identify and assess the risks of materia! misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and the
separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. ‘

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

» EBvaluate appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concerm.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements and the
separate {inancial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements and the separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. [ remain solely
responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that [ identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements
of the current period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, 1 determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

5.7

(Mr. Akadet Pliensakul)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 5389

M.R. & ASSOCIATES CO., LTD.
Bangkok
February 25, 2021



EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STAFEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECENMBER 31, 2020, DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND JANUARY 1,2019

ASSETS
In Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Stalements
December 31, December 31, January I, December 31, December 31, January 1,
2020 2019 2019 2020 2019 2019
Nole (Restated} (Restated) {Restated) (Restated)

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents 187,143,750 84,060,553 132,353,949 12,763,230 5,523,978 98,435,576
Tnvesiment in short-term debt securities 34 - 9,078,684 64,710,168 - 6,978,684 64,710,168
Trade receivabies
- Related parlies 56 7,554,917 6,517,591 6,082,591 18,609,356 10,546,383 13,908,261
- Other parties - net 6 323,753,862 276,800,090 121,824,997 310,157,778 273,796,153 313,817,104
Current portion of receivable from sales of righis 6 36,000,000 - - 36,000,000 - -
Current portion of other installment receivables
- Related person 5.8 5,350,000 8,325,000 - 5,550,000 8,325,000 -
= Other person 8 11,100,060 16,650,000 - 11,100,000 16,650,000 -
Inventories - net 7 1,370,207,622 1,379,373 448 1,172,206,372 1,369,772,706 1,378,844,746 1,¥70,734,045
Short-term loans 1o and interest receivables from related parties 5 - 15,034,038 65,342 864 189,707,397 36,826,272 23,200,298
Shori-term loans 1o other person 36 39,000,000 - 65,000,000 35,000,000 - -
Other current assets
- Deposits for purchases of taw materials and inventeries 25,611,809 2,896,295 150,000 25,611,809 2,896,295 150,000
- Value-added 1ax receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts

of Baht 3,051,891 in 2019) 11,076,370 25,099,459 20,303,523 9,556,825 22,627,662 17,861,937
- Others (net of allowance for doubiful accounts of Baht 3,997,141 in 2020

and 2019 and Baht 2,157,032 in 2018) 5 18,770,698 12,750,136 24,743,352 18,398,556 14,183,808 20,901,858
Total Current Assels 2,035,765,028 1,837,485,894 1,872,722,816 2,062,227,657 1,780,198,581 1,723,719,247
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Roceivable from sales of rights - reet 6 12,(00,000 . . 12,000,000 . ;
Gther installment receivables - net
- Related person ‘ 5,8 5,559,749 11,105,74% - 3,559,749 11,109,749 -
- Other person 8 11,119,479 22,219,497 - 11,119,479 22,219,497 -
Restricted deposits at banks 9 51,822,579 93,880,708 73,040,600 51,822,579 93,880,708 73,040,000
Investmen in subsidiaries accounted for using the cost method 1G, 37 - - - 703,276,950 103,276,950 563,276,950
Investment in associate and joint venture accounted
for using the equity methed i1 672,120,881 584,306,194 561,691,594 - - -
Property, plant and equipment - net 5,12, 15,20 521,509,561 481,891,660 459,396,354 517,586,851 459,711,813 438,650,850
Right-of-use assels - net 2,13 5,334,216 - - 5,334,216 - -
Intangible assets - net 14 1,230,680 776,035 2,194,440 1,185,347 678,772 611,946
Deferred tax assets 25 ’ 5,834,932 9,538,752 4,388,272 5,834,932 9,538,752 4,388,272
Loan to other party 8 B - 50,000,000 - - 50,000,060
Other ron-current assels
- Deposit for investment project 15 100,000,000 100,006,000 75,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,600 75,000,000
- Advance for purchase of investment 35 70,000,000 65,000,000 - 10,600,000 95,000,000 -
- Advances for share subscription 5,10, 11 B 78,750,000 - - 78,375,000 78,375,000
- Deposits and gaarantees 5,11,20 52,344,504 33,476,132 17,880,678 29,282,595 10,441,132 14,736,336
- Others - nel 58,374 84,084 1,807,831 714 7,284 1,656,456
Total Nen-Current Assets 1,508,955,295 1,510,826,8%1 1,245,399,169 1,583,003 ,472 1,584,239,657 1,299,736,013
FOTAL ASSETS 3 3,544,724,323 3,348,312,705 3,118,121,985 3,575,231,129 3,364,438,628 3,023,455,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EAST COAST FURNIFECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2020, DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND JANUARY 1,209

EIABELITEES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

In Baht

Consolidated

Separate Financial Statements

December 31, December 31, January 1, December 31, December 31, Jameary 1,
2020 209 2019 2020 2019 2019
Mote (Restated) {Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

CURRENT LIABRILITIES
Bank overdrafts and shert-lenm borrowings from financial institutions 9,12, 15 601,834,706 522,479,788 490,842,264 601,834,706 519,688,659 486,873,276
Facloring payables 6 87,460,976 108,199,346 113,415,604 87,460,576 108,199,346 113,415,604
Trade payabies 215,152,727 153,076,755 189,372,568 212,063,029 153,076,755 189,372,568
Other payables - related party 5 - - 1,849,166 6,726,142 B 1,901,666
Shor-terny loans from and interest payable to related parties 3 54,178,113 - - 82,746,223 49,492,553 40,217,808
Short-term loans from other partics 16 210,078,200 197,994,738 283,176,715 210,078,200 171,594,738 164,216,455
Current portion of long-term borrowings 12,20 40,372,434 27,630,545 18,336,719 40,372,434 25,114,956 13,205,226
Current portion of debentures 8 379,024,689 605,685,000 - 379,024,689 605,685,000 -
Current portion qf lease labilitics 2,21 2,318,263 1,375,377 2,972,968 2,318,268 1,375,377 2,972 968
Inconze fax payable 8,032,020 5,847,748 12,612,643 L1734 5,602,816 12,612,643
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 17 74,601,537 53,732,892 68,667,185 70,283,034 52,717,293 66,450,134
Tatat Current Linbilities 1,673,053,670 1,676,022,189 1,181,248,832 1,694,025,042 1,698,947,493 1,(93,258,348
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Leng-lerm borrowings - net 12,20 45,599,452 41,826,198 31,757,440 45,599,452 41,826,198 31,757,441
Debentures - net 13 571,163,847 375,114,628 688,638,008 574,163,847 375,114,628 688,638,008
i.ease liabilities - net 2,21 1,285,092 1,137,298 2,436,263 1,289,092 1,137,298 2,436,263
Deferred tax liabilities 3,25 2,222,293 1,840,075 2,252,359 2,222,293 1,840,073 2,252,399
Liability for post-employment benefits 1% 11,614,301 10,687,390 6,793,256 11,614,301 10,687,350 6,793,256
Total Non-Current Liabilities 611,888,585 430,605,589 731,877,366 631,888,985 430,603,589 131,877,367
Total Liabili¢ies 3 2,304,942,655 2,106,627,778 1,913,126,198 2,325,914,G27 2,129,553,082 1,823,135715




EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF FINANCEAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020, DECEMBER 31,2019 AND JANUARY 1,2019

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (Cantinued)

In Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Slatements
Trecember 31, December 31, January 1, December 31, December 31, January 1,
2020 2019 2019 2020 2019 2019

Note (Reslated) (Restated) {Restated) (Restated)
SHAREHOLDBERS' EQUITY
Authorized share capital - 1,196,646,188 common shares in 2020 and
1,249,848,363 common shares in 2019, and 1,416,549,076 common shares
in 2018, Baht 0.25 par value 22 299,161,547 312,462,090 354,137,269 299,161,547 312,462,080 354,137,269
Issued and paid-up share capital - 959,487,557 comtmnon shares in 202¢
and in 2019 and 955,405,082 common shares in 2018, Baht 0.25 par value 22 239,871,889 235,871,889 236,851,271 239,871,889 239,871,889 239,851,271
Premium on shares 22 768,342,199 768,342,199 768,115,352 768,342,199 768,342,149 768,115,392
Retained eamings
- Appropriated for legal reserve 23 28,950,000 27,400,000 25,600,000 28,950,000 27,400,000 25,600,000
- Unapproptiated 430,840,442 407,253,316 369,446,920 429,544 810 416,663,264 384,394,677
Total 1,468,004,530 1,442,867404 1,403,013,583 1,466,708,898 1,452,2717,352 1,417,961,340
CHher compenents of equity 3 (235,503,587) {221,549,509) (219,401,508) (217,391,796) (217,381,796) (217,641,795)
Equity attribitable to Owners of the Parent 1,232,500,943 1,221,317,895 1,183,612,075 1,240,317,102 1,234,885,556 1,200,319,545
MNen-controliing interests 7,280,725 20,367,032 21,383,712 - - -
Total Sharchalders’ Equity 3 1,239,781,668 1,241,684,927 1,204,995,787 1,249,317,102 1,234,885,556 1,200,319,545
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND} SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 3,544,724,323 3,248,312,705 3,118,121,985 3,575,231,129 3,364,438,638 3,023,455,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

In Bahi
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Note {Restated) (Restated)
REVENUES
Nei sales 5 1,384,485,110 1,254,183,512 1,363,675,799 1,251,506,206
Other income
- Sales of production scraps and supplies 11,994,600 12,312,562 11,994,600 12,312,562
- Interest income 5 7,656,367 10,131,773 12,460,338 7,743,418
- Gain on sales of non-current asset held for sale 11 6,171,006 - - -
- Gain on sales of fixed assets 5 - 7,153,915 - 7,116,701
- Others 5 4759768 6,813,401 4,724,423 5,715,957
Gain on exchange rate 560,772 344,203 571,460 413,838
Total Revenues 1,415,627,623 1,290,939,365 1,393,426,620 1,284,808 682
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 3,5,7,19 1,077,228,060 851,544,512 1,069,056,386 849,801,769
Distribution costs 5 61,608,355 74,824,253 48,549,136 74,381,672
Administrative expenses 3,5,12,14,19, 24 $34,234 987 183,534,690 124,245,709 176,944 173
QOther expenses 10 18,128,063 - - -
Toetal Expenscs 1,291,199,465 1,109,903,455 1,241,851,231 1,101,127,614
Profit from Operating Activities 124,428,158 181,035,911 151,575,389 183,681,068
Gain on Sales of Rights in Trade Receivables and Product Brand 6 18,796,156 - 18,796,150 -
Finance Costs 5,21 {132,918,147) {115,434,466) (134,307,064) (142,228,288)
Share of Profit from Investment in Associate and Joint Venture 11 35,141,738 10,757,000 - -
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSL 3 45,447,905 76,358,445 36,064,481 71,452,780
Income Tax Expense 3,19,25,28 (13,795,295) (7,488,701} (5,609,640) (7,104,165)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3 31,652,610 63,869,744 30,454,841 64,348,615

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

In Baht
Consotidated Separate Financial Statements
20620 2019 2020 2019
Note {Restated) {Restated)
Other Compreltensive Loss for the Year
Ttem that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Actuarial loss on remeasusement of liabiiity for post-employment
benefits (net of income tax effect by Baht 256,977 in 2019) 19 - {1,027,909) - (1,027,909}
Ttem that will be reclassifted subsequently to profit or loss
- Share of other comprehensive loss from associate 11 (13,954,078) (2,398,600) - -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR {13,954,078) (3,425,909) - (1,027,909)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 3 17,698,532 65,443,835 30,454,841 63,320,706
Profit (Loss) Attribatable to:
Owners of the parent ’ 3 41,160,421 69,886,424 30,454,841 64,348,615
Non-controlling interests (9,507,811) (1,016,680) - -
Profit for the Year 31,652,610 68,869,744 30,454,841 64,348,615
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attributable to:
Owrers of the parent 3 27,206,343 66,460,515 30,454,841 63,320,706
Non-controiling interests {8,507,811) (1,016,680) - -
Total Compreltensive Income for the Year 17,698,532 65,443,835 30,454,841 63,320,706
Basic Earnings per Share 3,20 0.0429 0.0728 0.0317 0.0670
Diluted Earnings per Share 3,26 0.0429 0.0728 ¢.0317 0.0670

The accompanying notes are an integral patt of these financial statements.
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EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2919

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year

Adjustments

Inconie tax expense

Depreciation and amortization

Gain on sales of rights in trade receivables and product brand
Loss (reversal of loss) on impairment of trade receivables and other receivables
Fxpenses on post-employment benefits

Loss on allowance for diminution in value of inventories
Share of profit from investment in asseciate and joint venture
Loss (gainy on valuation of fair value of derivatives
Unrealized loss (gain) on exchange rate

Gain on sales of fixed assets

Glain on sales of non-current asset held for sale

Loss on sales of intangible assets

Loss on written-off assets

Gain on sales of current investment

Interest income

Intetest expense

Decrease (increase} in operating assets

Trade receivables

Receivable from sales of rights

Inventories

Other current assets

Intangible assets

Other non-current assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables - related parties

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating
Income tax paid

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

I Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Restated) (Restated)
31,652,610 68,869,744 30,454,841 64,348,615
13,795,295 7,488,701 5,609,640 7,104,165
44,046,590 39,965,151 43,885,527 35,408,617
(18,796,156) - (18,796,156) -
(2,407,766) 23,344,893 (3,052,181} 22,831,534
926,911 2,609,248 926,911 2,609,248
453,833 1,421,174 453,833 1,421,174
31,974,367y  {10,757,000) - -
4,043 (108} 4,043 {108)
(112,519 197,311 (124,727} 197,311
- (7,153,915) - (7,116,701)
(6,175,006} - “ -
- 264,733 - -
18,436,272 3,180,136 70,070 2,831,635
- (212,498} - (212,498)
(7,656,367 (10,131,773)  (12,460,338) (7,743,418}
132,918,147 115,434,466 134,307,064 112,228,288
(85,027,227} 25,870,401 (100,816,312) 25,176,682
7,000,000 - 7,000,000 -
8,711,993  (208,588,250) 8,618,207  (209,531,875)
(6,959,863)  (13,865,592) 6,147,114y (19,020.235)
- 931,500 - -
(5,653,062)  (18,064,868) (5,044,953} 1,751,418
62,117,380 (36,286,092) 59,027,682 (36,286,092)
- (1,849,166) 6,726,142 (1,901,666)
5,803,774 (21,762,747) 2,512,662 (20,410,610}
101,108,515 (39,094,551) 152,554,841 (22,314,516)
(7,525,215)  {19,798,949) (6,009,077)  (19,659.345)
153,583,300 (58,893,500) 146,545,764 (41,973,861)




EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease {increase) in restricted deposits at banks
Decrease (increase) in short-term loans to related parties
Collections on other installment receivables

Decrease (increase) in short-term loans to other parties
Deecrease (increase) in current investment

Proceeds from sales of current investment

Increase in investment in subsidiary

Increase in investment i associate

Increase in deposit for investment project

Decrease (increase} in advance for purchase of investment
Decrease {increase) in advances for share subscription
Additions to plant and equipment

Additions to intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of non-current asset held for sale
Proceeds from sales of equipment

Dividends received

Interest received

Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in bank overdrafts and shost-term borrowings from
financial institutions

Diecrease in factoring payables

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans from other parties
Ingrease in short-term loans from rejated parties

Decrease in lease liabilities

Increase in long-term borrowings

Repaymenis of long-term borrowings

Issuance of debentures

Redemption of debentures

Debenture issuance costs

Proceeds from increase in share capital

Decrease in non-controlling interests

Dividends and interim dividends paid

Interest paid

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

In Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial S{atements
2020 2019 2020 2019
42,058,129 (20,840,708) 42,058,129 (20,840,708)
13,760,134 326,000 (149,000,000)  (12,074,470)
24,975,018 - 24,975,018 -
(39,000,000} 65,000,000 (35,000,000) -
9,978,684  (120,000,000) 9,978,684  (120,000,000)
- 175,212,498 - 175,212,498
- - - {140,000,000)
(230,355,222)  (14,049,600) - -
- {25,000,000) - (25,000,000)
25,000,000 (95,000,000} 25,000,600 (95,000,000)
(28,750,000) 78,375,000 -
(99,979,655)  (56,216,719)  (99,979,657) (52,633,343}
- (424,672) - (424,672)
233,882,006 - - -
- 8,897,308 - 7,327,103
11,393,824 - - -
3,798,689 15,009,485 3,725,755 10,997,087
(4,488,393)  (95,836,408) (99,867,071} (272,436,510)
79,558,387 31,637,523 82,349,516 32,815,383
(20,738,370) (5,216,258)  (20,738,370) (5,216,258}
15,346,278 {86,000,000) 35,346,278 14,000,000
53,500,000 - 32,300,000 8,700,000
(2,779,346) (2,896,556} (2,779,346) (2,896,556)
50,000,000 39,590,000 50,000,000 39,590,000
(33,484,857)  (20,230,416)  (30,969,268) (17,611,513}
581,100,000 380,200,000 581,100,000 380,200,000
(609,800,000)  (90,100,000)  (609,800,000) (90,100,000
(14,375,445) (7,802,000)  (14,375,445) (7,802,000)
- 247,425 - 247,425
(3,578,496) - - -
(16,023295)  (29,002,120)  (16,023,295)  (29,002,120)
(124,736,566)  (103,996,086)  (125,849,511)  (101,425,588)
(46,011,710) 106,431,512 (39,439,441) 221,498,773
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EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 20192

In Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 103,083,197 (48,298,396} 7,239,252 (92,911,598)
Cash and Cash Equivalenis at Beginning of Year 84,060,553 132,358,949 5,523,978 98,435,576
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 187,143,750 84,000,553 12,763,230 5,523,978
Supplementary disclosures of cash flow information:
a. Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Cash in hand 420,385 621,707 310,385 405,199
Current accounts at banks 176,210,828 11,919,375 2,820,045 3,984,365
Savings deposits at banks 5,966,830 71,059,996 5,087,093 674,939
Short-term fixed deposit at bank 4,545,707 459,475 4,545,707 459,475
Total 187,143,750 34,060,553 12,763,230 5,523,978
b. Non-cash transactions
Purchases of equipment by means of payables 17,007,738 5,122,000 17,007,738 5,122,600
Interest on long-term loan capiialized as cost of fixed assets - 963,736 - 965,734
Transfer of trade receivables to receivables from sales of rights 55,000,000 - 55,000,000 -
Transfer of non-current assets to fixed assets 2,310,000 - 2,310,000 -
Transfer of fixed assets to right-of-use assefs 4,003,233 - 4,003,233 -
Transfer of fixed assets to intangible assets 950,000 - 950,000 -
Initial recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 1,873,520 - 1,873,520 -
Increase in right-of-use assets by new hire purchase agreements 2,000,511 - 2,000,511 -
Transfer of investment in joint venfure to non-current asset held for sale 227,711,000 - - -
Transfer of advances for share subscription to investment in associate 78,750,000 - - -
Transfer of Ioan to related person to advances for share subscription - 50,600,000 - 50,000,000
Transfer of loan to other party and interest receivable to
other installment receivables - 58,304,246 - 58,304,246
¢. Supplementary disclosures of cash flow information
Total cash outflow for leases 2,949,564 - 2,949,564 -

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

1. GENERAL

Fast Coast Furnitech Public Company Limited (“the Company”), formerly East Coast Furnitech Co.,
Ltd., was registered as a limited company in Thailand on October 12, 1999. The Company was
transformed from being juristic person as a limited company under the Civil and Commercial Code to a
limited public company under the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 on October 18, 2012 and
was registered in the Market for Alternative Investment on March 26, 2013, The Company is engaged in
manufacturing and sales of self-assembled furniture made from particle board, rubber wood furniture,
dried sawn lumbers, laminating papers, and furniture-decorating supplies for domestic and infernational
markets.

The Company’s head office is located at 37/9 Moo 10 Banbung-Klaeng Rd., Tambon Tangkwian,
Amphur Klaeng, Rayong 21110. The Company’s total number of branches is 2 which comprises branch
located in Pathumthani and Rayong.

VV-Décor Co., Ltd, (“VVD™), the subsidiary of which shares are held at 99.95% by the Company, was
registered a limited company in Thailand on May 11, 2011 and is engaged in sales of laminating papers
and furniture-decorating supplies in domestic market. The registered office of the subsidiary is located at
25/28 Moo 12 Tambon Bungkamproy, Amphur Lamlukka, Pathumthani.

ECF Holdings Co., Ltd. (“ECF-H”), the subsidiary of which shares are held at 75% by the Company, was
registered a limited company in Thailand on February 23, 2015 and is engaged in sales of sundry goods
imported from abroad and furniture through sale agents in local. The registered office of the subsidiary is
located at 37/4 Moo 10 Banbung-Klaeng Rd., Tambon Tangkwian, Amphur Klaeng, Rayong.

ECE Power Co., Ltd. (“ECE-P”), the subsidiary of which shares are held at 99.99% by the Company, was
registered a limited company in Thailand on January 16, 2017 and is engaged as holding company in
energy business e.g. biomass or solar energy. The registered office of the subsidiary is located at 3717
Moo 10 Banbung-Klaeng Rd., Tambon Tangkwian, Amphur Klaeng, Rayong.

Planet Board Co., Ltd. (“PNB™), the subsidiary of which shares are held at 57% by the Company, was
registered a limited company in Thailand on December 19, 2017 whereby PNB is during the set up and
arrangement of the new business plan to replace the previous manufacturing and sales of wood-base
panel, i.e. MDF board and particle board. The registered office of the subsidiary is located at 25/28 Moo
12 Tambon Bungkamproy, Amphur Lamlukka, Pathumthani.

2. BASIS FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in Thai Baht, which is core functional currency of
the Company, and are in the Thai language in accordance with the financial reporting standards in
Thailand including interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting
Professions (“I'FAC™), applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements are intended solely to present the financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows in accordance with the financial reporting standards in Thailand.

Except as otherwise disclosed in the significant accounting policies, the accompanying financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
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EAST COST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31,2020 and 2019

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 included the
accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™) in which the Company has the confrolling
power or direct / indirect shareholding as follows:

Country of Percentage of
Incorporation Shareholding
Name of Subsidiaries Type of Business and Operation 2020 2019
VV-Décor Co., Ltd. Sales of laminating papers Thailand 99.95 99.95
and furniture- decorating
supplies
ECF Holdings Co., Ltd. Sales of sundry goods Thailand 75.00 75.00
imported from abroad and
furniture
ECF Power Co., Ltd. Holding company in energy Thailand 99.99 99.99
business
Planet Board Co., Ltd Manufacturing and sales of Thailand 57.00 57.00

wood-base panel, i.e. MDF
board and particle board
(see Note 1)

Significant intercompany transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements have been eliminated.

Starting from January 1, 2020, the Group had adopted Thai Accounting Standards (TAS), Thai Financial
Reporting Standards (TFRS), Thai Accounting Interpretation (TSIC), and Thai Financial Reporting
Interpretation (TFRIC), newly issued and revised by TEAC, which became effective from the accounting
period starting on or after January 1, 2020. The aforesaid adoption of newly issued and revised TAS and
TERS as well as TSIC and TFRIC did not have any material effect to the financial statement of the
Group, except:

TERS 9 and other related siandards

TFRS 9 specifies the methods that the entity shall classify and measure its financial assets, financial
liabilities, and contracts to purchase or sell the non-financial items. TFRS 9 is divided into the following
three parts:

1. Classification and measurement
2. Impairment
3. Hedge accounting

Thus, TERS 9 affects the Group to classify and measure its financial assets and financial liabilities in
statement of financial position of 2020 as well as recogpizing impairment for the expected credit loss of
financial assets with respect to the principle discussed in the section of significant accounting policies.

As at December 31, 2019, there was no material effect from measurement of financial assets and
financial Liabilities. In addition, no restatement on the figures of comparative information of previous
periods has been made in relation to classification and measurement because the Group exercised the
option of modified retrospective adjustment by recognizing the cumulative effect from the first-time
adoption of TFRS 9 at the date of initial application (January 1, 2020).

In addition, as at December 31, 2019, the effect of impairment from expected credit loss was immaterial
and no restatement on the figures of comparative information of previous periods has been made because
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EAST COST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2020 and 2019

the Group exercised the option of modified retrospective adjustment by recognizing the cumulative effect
from the first-time adoption of TFRS 9 at the date of initial application (January 1, 2020).

TFRS 16

TFRS 16 specifies that lessee shall recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability for all Jease agreements
with the present value or discounted cash flows of payments throughout the lease term whereby the
discount rate shall be considered appropriate in situation and to the entity. However, there is exception
for short-term leasc agreement (not exceeding 12-month period) or lease agreement for the underlying
low-value asset whereby payments under the lease are able to be accounted for as expense. Right-of-use
asset shall be depreciated by straight-line method over the lease term. Deferred interest, presented as
deduction to lease liability, is amortized as finance cost over the lease term by the effective interest rate
method. Hach installment payment under the lease liability shall be separated into parts of principal and
interest.

For lessor, classification and accounting for operating lease or finance lease is still required as previousty
applied. Therefore, there is no significant change or effect on the lessor.

TFRS 16 affects the Group to recognize right-of-use assets (non-current asset) and lease liabilities for the
lease of vehicles (non-current liability) whereby the remaining lease term as at December 31, 2019 is 13
months and 29 months. The balances of non-current asset and non-current liability in the consolidated
and separate statements of financial position as at December 31, 2019 increased from those previously
reported of approximately Baht 1.87 million whereas the effect to the consolidated and separate
statements of comprehensive income is immaterial. In addition, the Company transferred its fixed assets
(vehicles) of which carrying amount of approximately Baht 4.00 million as at January 1, 2020 to present
as part of carrying amount of the right-of-use assets as at that date (see Notes 13 and 21).

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate that is used in determining the discounted cash flows
by the Group is 6.025% p.a. In addition, no restatement on the figures of comparative information of
previous periods has been made because the Group exercised the option of modified retrospective
adjustment by recognizing the cumulative effect from the first-time adoption of TFRS 16 at the date of
initial application (January 1, 2020).
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EAST COST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2020 and 2019

TEAC issued several Notifications which were announced in the Royal Gazette during 2020 regarding
the revision of TAS and TFRS as well as TSIC and TFRIC with effective from the accounting period
starting on or after January 1, 2021 whereby the Group had not yet adopted in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements and has no policy to early adopt before effective period. Such revised
TAS and TFRS as well as TSIC and TFRIC are as follows:

»  TFRSs that are revised with reference to the revision of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting i.e. TAS 1, TAS 8, TAS 34, TAS 37, TAS 38, TFRS 2, TFRS 3, TERS 6, TFRIC 12,
TFRIC 19, TFRIC 20, TFRIC 22, TSIC 32. Revision of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting comprised of the updated definitions of assets and liabilities, the updated basis of
inclusion of assets and liabilities in the financial statements as well as the newly added principles
and guidance as follows:

. Measurement that includes factors for considering the measurement basis;

. Presentation and disclosures of information that includes when the reclassification of
revenues and expenses in other comprehensive income is required;

. The reporting entities,

. When the assets and liabilities shall be derecognized from the financial statements.

The Conceptual Framework also clearly explains more about the role of management’s ability in
overseeing the entity’s economic resources, prudence and uncertainty in measurements for
financial reporting.

% TFRS that is revised attributable to the revision of definition of business i.c. TFRS 3 whereby the
revision is aimed for helping the entity to determine whether the transaction shall be accounted for
as “business combination” or “acquisition of assets”.

»  TFRSs that are revised attributable to the revision of definition of materiality i.e. TAS 1, TAS 8,
TAS 10, TAS 34, TAS 37 whereby the revision is aimed for more understanding in the definition
of materiality.

»  TFRSs that are revised attributable to the revision for IBOR reformation i.e. TFRS 7, TFRS 9
whereby the revision relates to change in certain provisions of hedge accounting in order to relief
the impacts from uncertainties caused by IBOR reformation, e.g. Interbank offer rates - IBOR. In
addition, the revision requires the entity to disclose additional information to the investors about
the relationships of hedging activities that are directly affected by such uncertainties.

The Group’s management has preliminarily assessed and believed that there will be no material effect to
the Group’s financial statements upon adoption of the aforesaid revised TAS and TFRS as well as TSIC
and TTRIC.

The Group disclosed information for the year ended December 31, 2019 for being the comparative
mformation in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 in the form of

corresponding figures.

For convenience of the readers, an English translation of the financial statements has been prepared from
the Thai language statutory financial statements that are issued for domestic financial reporting purposes.
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EAST COST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2020 and 2019

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Starting from January 1 2020, the Company has changed its accounting policy with respect of the
valuation of its land, buildings and machinery from revaluation model to cost model (approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors on March 30, 2020) which is allowed under TFAC’s Announcement No.
18/2554 dated April 12, 2011, “Accounting Guidance on Revaluation of Assets”. Key rationales of such
change in the accounting policy related to (1) possible practice and elimination of difficulties as well as
significant undue costs in book closure under uniformity of the accounting policy of entities in the Group
and (2) the Company’s management considered that adoption of cost model shall be in line with the
similar industry practice and give more clarity and appropriateness in reflection of management ability
and financial performance of the Company as compared to revaluation model. Accordingly, the Company
retrospectively adjusted the prior period financial statements, presented herein for comparative purpose,
presuming as to the Company had previously accounted for and valued its land, buildings and machinery
by the cost model. Such retrospectively adjustments have effects to certain significant items in the prior
period financial statements, presented herein for comparative purpose, as follows:

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
Increase (Decrease) - Baht

Statements of Financial Position as ai January 1, 2019 December 31, 2019
Asset revaluation surplus - net / Total assets ( 277,409,294) ( 242,661,257)
Deferred tax liabilities / Total liabilities ( 35,084,371) ( 29,937,142)
Other components of equity / Total shareholders” equity (242,324,923) (212,724,115)
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 31, 2019

Cost of sales ( 33,183,638)
Administrative expenses (  1,324,873)
Profit before income tax expense 34,508,511
Income tax expense 4,907,703
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 29,600,808
Profit and Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 29,600,808
Basic earnings per share and Diluted earnings per share 0.0308

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Asset revaluation surplus - net as at January 1, 2019 ( 242,324,923)
Asset revaluation surplus - net as at January 1, 2020 ( 212,724,115)
Transfer to retained carnings (2019) ( 29,600,808)
Total comprehensive income for the year to retained earnings (2019) 29,600,808

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2019

Profit for the year , 29,600,808
Income tax expense 4,907,703
Depreciation and amortization ( 34,508,511)

20



EAST COST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)
December 31, 2020 and 2019

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. '

Significant intercompany transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements have been eliminated.

Subsidiary is a company controlied by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies as well as the variable retuns of a
company so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases.

Changes in a parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for within equity. When an entity loses control of a subsidiary, investment retained in the
former subsidiary is measuared at its fair value while any gain or loss is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income,

Foreign Currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the statement of financial position
date are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are carried vnder historical
cost convention are translated to Thai Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Investment in Associate and Joint Venture

Investment in associate and joint venture in the consolidated financial statements is accounted for using
the equity method.

Associate is the entity in which the Company or the Group has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies. Joint venture is joint arrangement in the entity in which the Company
ot the Group has joint control among other venturers in that entity. The consolidated financial statements
of the Group include share of profit or loss of associate and joint venture, on an equity accounted basis,
from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the date that significant
influence or joint control ceases. When the share of loss exceeds its interest in any associate and joint
venture, the investment in such associate and joint venture shall be reduced to nil and recognition of
further loss shall be ceased except to the extent that the Company or the Group has legal or constructive
obligations or consents to settle the obligations on behalf of the associate and joint venture.
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Current Investment

Current investment in unit trusts which is held by the Company as trading and stated at fair value. Gains
or [osses arising from changes in the fair value of investment or sales of investment are included as profit
or loss in statement of comprehensive income. In case the Company disposes of part of its holding of a
particular investment, the deemed cost of the part sold and the part still remained is determined using the
weighted average method applied to the carrying amount of the total hoiding of the investment.

Fair value of unit trusts is determined from the net asset value of mutual fund that issued the particular
unit trust which is the Level 1 inputs of the fair value hierarchy.

Current investment in short-term bill of exchange (debt sccurities) that is held to maturity is stated at
amortized cost net of allowance for impairment (if any).

Use of Estimates

In order to prepare financial statements in conformity with the Thai financial reporting standards,
management needs to make estimates and set assumptions that affect income, expenditure, assets and
liabilities in order to disclose information on the valuation of assets, labilities and contingent liabilities.
Actual outcomes may, therefore, differ from the estimates used.

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Significant estimates and underlying assumptions used in preparation of these financial statements which
may be affected by significant uncertainty are as follows:

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and other receivables as well as loan receivables
Net realizable value and allowance for losses on diminution in value of inventories

Alowance for impairment of plant and equipment

Useful lives and residual values of building and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Consideration for the renewal option of leases and discount rate of lease liabilities

o Expected periods and amounts that deferred tax assets will be realized

e Assumptions used in calculation and estimate of liability for post-employment benefits

® Fair values and fair value measurements of financial assets, financial liabilities and other financial
instruments.

o & o @

About the pandemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19), the Group’s management has after the
situation and continuously assessed the impacts from such matter. However, the COVID-19 situation is
highly uncertain and may affect, whether directly or indirectly, to the environment of business operations
of the Group as well as estimates and judgements used for assessing values of assets, liabilities or
provisions and contingent liabilities in the financial statcraents that are changeable depending on the
assessment of COVID-19 situation in each period done by the Group’s management.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost include cash on hand
and cash at financial institutions. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturity of three months or less and without
restriction of use or being collateral and that are subject to a low or an insignificant risk of change in
value.

Restricted deposits at banks or being collateral were separately presented as “Restricted deposits at
banks” under non-current assets in the statements of financial position.

Trade Receivables, Other Receivables, and Allowance for impairment (2020) /Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts {2019)

Trade and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount or at the accrued amount net of
allowance for impairment/allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Group provides allowance for impairment in accordance with the policy as discussed in the section
of financial instruments.

The Group provides allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated collection losses that may be
incurred in the collection of receivables. The estimated losses are based on the historical collection
experience coupled with the review of current status of the existing receivables.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost net of allowance for diminution in value of obsolete and slow-
moving inventories and net realizable value. Cost is calculated and determined using the First-In, First-
Out method.

Costs of inventories comprise the purchase cost, conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. In case of own-manufactured inventories and work
in process, costs of inventories include the appropriate allocation of production overheads which is based
on the normal capacity of production facilities

Net realizable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business less necessary
costs to sell.

The Group determines the allowance for diminution in value of obsolete and slow-moving inventories
based on the consideration of the inventory condition and the historical experiences.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Land, building and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and allowance for
impairment (if any). When assets are retired or disposed of, their carrying values are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their retirement or disposal is included in the statement of
comprehensive income. Costs of asset dismantlement, removal, and restoration are included as part of
asset cost and subject to depreciation.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line method over the
useful lives of each significant part of an item of assets. Depreciation methods, residual values, and
useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end, at least, and adjusted if appropriate. In determining
the depreciable amount, residual value of particular asset is measured at amount estimated receivable
currently for the asset if the asset is already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its
useful life. The useful lives of the assets are as follows:

No. of Years

Land improvement 5
Building and building improvement 5 and 20
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Electric system 5
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5
Showroom equipment '3
Vehicles 5
Utilities 5

No depreciation has been charged for land and assets under construction or installation.
Right-of-use Asset

The Group measures right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for
impairment (if any) with adjustment pertaining to re-measurement of lease liabilities (if any).

At the commencement date, cost of the right-of-use asset comprised (1) the amount of initial
measurement of lease liability, (2) lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received, (3) initial direct costs incurred by the lessee (if any) and (4) an estimate of costs
to be incurred in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease (if any
and being material).

Depreciation is charged as expense in profit or loss and calculated by the straight-line method attributable
to the related lease terms as follows:

Period

Vehicles and equipment 18 - 60 months
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are computer programs that are stated at cost net of accumulated amortization and
allowance for impairment (if any). Amortization is made on a straight-line method over the useful lives
of the assets of 5 years,

Amortization

Amortization is charged as part of distribution costs and administrative expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income on the straight-line method over the useful life of each type of intangible asset.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life (if any) are not amortized but are tested for indication of
impairment at each reporting date. Amortization methods, residual values, and useful lives are reviewed
at least at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the assets of the Group are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets” recoverable amounts (the
higher of asset’s fair value less cost to sell or value in use) shall be estimated and reviewed. The review is
made for individual assets or for the cash-generating unit.

In case that the carrying value of an asset cxceeds its recoverable amount, the Group recognizes the
impairment [oss by reducing the carrying amount of the asset to its recoverable amount and by recording
the devaluation in the statement of comprehensive income. The reversal of impairment losses recognized
in prior years is recorded as part of other income when there is an indication that the impairment losses
recogttized for the assets no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal of the impairment Josses shall
not exceed the carrying amount of the asset, net of depreciation or amortization, that would have been
determined had no impairment losses been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are stated at cost.
Lease Liability

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rates (average interest rates on borrowings with similar term and characteristics to
the underlying asset) shall be used. The lease payments that are not paid comprised (1) fixed payments
(less any lease incentives receivable, (2) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date (if any), (3) amounts expected to
be payable under residual value guarantees (if any), (4) exercise price of a purchase option if 1t is
reasonably certain to exercise that option (if any) and (5) payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease (if any).
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After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by (1) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (if any), (2) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made (if any) and (3) re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
fease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments (if any). Interest on lease
liability and variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability (if any) is
charged as expense in profit or loss.

Lease fees attributable to short-term lease (not exceeding 12 months from commencement date) and lease
of low-value asset are charged as expense in profit or loss.

Employee Benefits

Short-term benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to social security fund are recognized as an expense upon
their occurrences and on an accrual basis.

Post-employment benefits

Obligations on defined contribution plan which is the provident fund are recognized as an expense in the
statement of comprehensive income when contribution to the fund on an accrual basis.

Obligations on post-employment benefits which are defined benefit plan that will be settled to the
employees upon retirement or termination are calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that
employees have earned in return for their service in the prior and current periods. The benefits are
discounted using the project unit credit method to determine present vatue of obligations. The calculation
is annually performed or at least every three years by the qualified actuary. Expenses from the liability
for post-employment benefits comprise past service cost, current service cost and interest cost which are
recognized as profit or loss whereas actuarial gain/loss on measurement is recognized as other
comprehensive income or loss.

Surplus on Business Combination under Common Control

Business combination under common control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities or businesses are ultimately controiled by the same persons, group of persons, entity, or group of
entities both before and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory.

Unrealized gain or loss on internal restructuring of the entities under common control is the difference
between the carrying amounts of the obtained assets and the purchase costs of the assets incurred on
internal restructuring of the entity of group of entities under common control whereby such purchase of
assets is the combination of the entities under the same shareholders and management. Such unrealized
gain or loss is presented as “Surplus on business combination under common control” which is separately
presented under other components of equity in the statement of financial position. When the assets
relating to surplus on business combination under common control are retived or disposed of, the
corresponding surplus on business combination under common control is directly transferred to the
unappropriated retained earnings.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably whereby there is
consideration about characteristics, amount, timing as well as uncertainty of revenue and contractual cash
flows from contract with customer.

Sales are recognized, at a point in time, net of discounts and considerations paid to customer or buyer
when delivery has taken place and transfer of risks and rewards of ownership as well as control of goods
to the buyer has been completed.

Short-term service income is recognized, at a point in time, when the Company has completely rendered
service and delivered to the customer and on an accrual basis.

Interest income is recognized, over time, on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the
asset, if significant.

Rental income on operating lease is recognized over time on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Dividend income is recognized at a point in time on the date the Group’s right to receive payments is

established which in the case of investment in quoted securities is usually the ex-dividend date.
Dividends from investment in associate and joint venture are treat as capital return and, therefore, being a

“deduction to the value of investment accounted for using the equity method.

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Expense Recognition

Other than the lease fees attribuable to short-term lease and lease of low-value asset, other expenses are
recognized on an accrual basis.

Borrowing Costs

Interest and financial charges on liabilities acquired for construction of building and installation of
machinery and equipment is capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. The capitalization of such finance
costs is ceased when the construction or installation are completed and ready for their intended use.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Principal market is the market with the
greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability. Market participants comprise buyers and
sellers in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability whereby market participants
are independent of each other, knowledgeable and having a reasonable understanding, able to enter info a
transaction for the asset or liability, and willing to enter into a transaction for the asset or liability.
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To increase the consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related disclosures in the
financial statements, the fair value hierarchy is categorized into 3 levels with respect of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assefs or liabilities (“Level 1 inputs™), secondary
priority to other observable inputs (“Level 2 inputs™), and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (“Levei 3
inputs™).

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date,

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liahility, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Financial instruments
Recognition and measurement

The Group initially measures financial assets at fair value, plus transaction costs in case of financial assets that
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets shall be classified and measured with
respect to the business model on asset management and characteristics of the asset’s contractual cash flows
which is divided into three categories i.e. amortized cost, fair vatue through other comprehensive income, and
fair value through profit or loss. Upon changes in business model on financial asset management are known,
the affected financial assets shall be considered for proper reclassification.

The Group initially measures financial liabilities at fair value net of transaction costs. Financial liabilities shall
be classified and measured at amortized cost except for financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss (such labilities include derivative liabilities). Reclassification of financial liabilities is
prohibited.

Classification and measurement

Assets classified and measured at amortized cost

® Cash and cash equivalents

° Reslricted deposits at banks

° Investment in short-term debt securities

. Trade receivables

. Other receivables (including refundable advances and deposits or guarantees)
) Loan receivables

Assets classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income - none
Assets classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss

° Derivatives assets (other current assets)

[iabilities classified and measured at amortized cost

e Bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings

. Trade payables

. Other payables (including accruals and deposits or guarantees with payment condition)
. Long-term borrowings

e Debentures

° Lease liabilities

Liabilities classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss

° Derivatives liabilities (other current liabilities)

28



EAST COST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31,2020 and 2019

Impairment

Impairment loss (previously before 2020 was referred to as provision for doubtful account for certain
stems in the financial statements) from the expected credit loss of financial assets shall be recognized
under General approach in the following stages:

° Stage 1 (performing): the 12-month expected credit loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.
Interest income (if any) shall be calculated base on gross carrying amount without netting the
allowance for expected credit loss.

. Stage 2 (under-performing): upon significant rise in credit risk and not being at low level, the entity
shall recognize the full lifetime expected credit loss in profit or loss. Interest income (if any) shall
be caleulated based on the same principle to Stage 1.

. Stage 3 (credit-impaired): upon significant rise in credit risk of financial asset that is considered as
credit impaired, the entity shall recognize the full lifetime expected credit loss in profit or loss.
Interest income (if any) shall be calculated base on gross carrying amount net of the allowance for
impairment.

For trade receivables and contract assets (e.g. accrued income), the entity is able to adopt Simplified
approach by recognizing the full lifetime expected credit loss for financial assets considered as aforesaid.
In consideration and measurement of expected credit loss for both General approach and Simplified
approach, the historical credit loss shall be combined with the forward looking information pertaining to
the assets and significant factors relating to economic environment.

For receivables, loan receivables and investment in short-term debt securities, the Group categorized the
population by focusing on aging balance information whereby the past records were captured for
historical credit loss approximately 1 year. However, the Group had excrcised certain mitigating measure
indicated in the accounting guidance for Temporary Mitigating Policies for Alternative Accounting on
the Fffects from Pandemic Situation of the Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19), issued by TFAC in April
2020 (within effective only in 2020). Such mitigating measure related to exemption from combining
forward looking information for the assets adopted the Simplified approach on consideration and

measurement of the expected credit loss.

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting is aimed for reflecting the impacts in the financial statements that are caused in risk
management activities using the financial instruments on management of exposures to the risks and such
risks shall affect profit or loss and/or other comprehensive income. Relationships and related accounting
treatment of hedge accounting are divided into three categories i.c. fair value hedge, cash flows hedge,
and hedge of net investment in foreign entity.

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage fair value risk exposed by change in foreign
exchange rates arising from operating activities. Derivatives are not intended to use for trading purpose.
However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.
Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and then are re-measured at fair value. Gain or loss on
re-measurement to fair value is recognized as profit or loss.
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The fair value of derivatives is the quoted market price at the statement of financial position date, which
is the Level 2 inputs of the fair value hierarchy whereby such price js the present value of the quoted
derivative price where market approach was used as valuation technique and core information used in
evaluation was the adjusted exchange rates in market to fit for the issued instrument which was computed
by bank who was the counterparty.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when therc is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Income Tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year, which is recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income, is current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable or recoverable which is calculated from taxable profit or loss for
the year, using tax rates enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temporary differences are
not recognized for the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities, at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the deferred tax asset is
realized or the tax Hability is settled based on tax rates that have been enacted as at the statement of
financial position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing profit for the year, attributable to owners of the
Company, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year whereas
diluted earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit for the year, atiributable to owners of the
Company, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year after adjusting
the effect from dilutive potential common shares.
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5. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are those parties controlled by the Company or have power control over the Company,
directly or indirectly or significant influence, to govern the financial and operating policies of the

Company.

Types of relationship of related parties are as follows:

Name of Companies / Persons Type of Business Type of Relationship

VV-Décor Co., Ltd. Sales of laminating papers and furniture- Subsidiary
decorating supplies

ECF Holdings Co., Ltd. Sales of sundry goods imported from Subsidiary
abroad and furniture

ECF Power Co., Ltd. Holding company in energy business Subsidiary

Planet Board Co., Ltd. Manufacturing and sales of wood-base Subsidiary
panel, i.e. MDF board and particle board
(see Note 1)

Safe Energy Holdings Co., Lid. Holding company in energy business Joint venture

(until December 2020)
Green Earth Power (Thailand) Holding company in energy business Associate

Co., Ltd.
Prize of Wood Green Energy
Co., Ltd.

GEP (Myanmar) Company Limited

(incorporated and operated in
Myanmar)

Bina Puri Power (Thailand) Co.,
Ltd.

Safe Biomass Co., Ltd.

Fast Cost Desigan Co., Ltd.
East Coast Industry Co., Ltd.
V-Chat Décor Co., Ltd.
V-Chat Industry Co., Ltd.
B.V. Parawood Co., Ltd.
Index Living Mall Co., Ltd.

Index Intetfurn Co., Ltd.
Prize of Wood Industry Co., Ltd.

Khun Wallop Suksawad

Khun Chalee Suksawad

Manufacturing and sales of electricity
generated from biomass fuel

Manufacturing and sales of electricity
generated from solar power

Manufacturing and sales of electricity
generated from biomass fuel

Wood chip plant for use as fuel for
biomass power plant

Manufacturing and sales of furniture
Sales of furniture

Manufacturing and sales of laminating
papers

Manufacturing and sales of dried sawn
lumbers

Manufacturing and sales of furniture and
dried sawn lumbers

Sales of furniture

Manufacturing and sales of furniture
Manufacturing and sales of wood-base
panel, i.e. wood sheet and rubber wood

Subsidiary of joint venture
and co-directors
(until December 2020}
Subsidiary of associate and
co-directors

Subsidiary of joint venture
(until December 2020)
Subsidiary of joint venture
(until December 2020)

Co-directors and co-
shareholders
Co-directors and co-
sharecholders
Co-directors and co-
shareholders
Co-directors and co-
shareholders
Co-directors and co-
sharcholders
Directors are spouse
Directors are spouse
Co-shareholders and
co-directors with subsidiary
of joint venture
(until December 2020)
Shareholder and director
(key management)
Shareholder and director
(key management)
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Name of Companies / Persons

Type of Business Type of Relationship

Khun Arak Suksawad

Khun Tippawan Suksawad

General Terdsak Marrome
Khun Monteee Socatiyanurak
Khun Songklod Jarusombuti
Khun Ekarin Vasanasong
Khun Paiboon Aroonprasobsuk

- Shareholder and director
(key management)
- Sharcholder and relative
of director
- Director (key management)
- Director (key management)
- Director (key management)
- Director (key management)
- Director (key management)

Key management are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the entity, either directly or indirectly, including the Company’s director (whether as

executive or otherwise).

Pricing policies for transactions with related parties are as follows:

Type of Transaction

Pricing Policies

Purchases - sales of products
Interest income / interest expense
Space rental income and other income

Dividend income

Purchases of raw materials / inventories / supplies

Purchases - sales of equipment
Decoration costs of showrooms

Key management’s temunerations
Guarantee of credit facilities by directors

Prices approximated market prices

MOR

Mutually agreed price

Rate announced at the meeting of the investee
Prices approximated market prices

Mutually agreed price

Mutually agreed price

Mutually agreed amount

No gurarantee charge

Transactions with related parties for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Sales of products
Subsidiaries
Related companies
Total

Interest income
Subsidiaries
Associate

Joint venture
Related person
Total

Space rental income
Subsidiary

Other income
Related companies

In Thousand Baht
Separate Financial
Consolidated Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
- - 76,480 8,533
21,688 25,130 16,121 25,130
21,688 25,130 92,601 33,663
- - 5,707 2,821
16 58 - -
624 932 - -
888 2,805 888 -
1,528 3,795 6,595 2,821
- - - 3
579 1,326 579 879
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Dividend income (presented as a
deduction to investment value)
Associate

Sales of equipment

Related company

Purchases of inventory
Subsidiary

Purchase of equipment
Subsidiary

Showroom rental and service
charges

Related company

Interest expense

Subsidiaries

Related persons

Total

Key management’s remunerations
Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total

Outstanding balances with related parties as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Trade receivables
Subsidiaries
Related companies
Total

Other installment receivables
(see Note 8)

Related person

Due for payments within one year
Due for payments after one year but
not exceeding three years

Total

Tnterest receivable (other current
assets)

Total

Other receivables

{other current assefs)

Subsidiary

Related company

Total

In Thousand Baht
Separate Financial
Consolidated Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
11,394 - - -
- 3 . -
- . 1 -
- - - 542
- 6,084 - 9.084
. - 2,383 1,404
664 - 136 -
664 - 2,519 1,404
21,033 18,972 18,513 18,972
271 1,424 271 1,424
21,304 20,396 18,784 20,396
In Thousand Baht
Separate Financial
Consolidated Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
- - 35,800 4,029
7,555 6,517 2,800 6,517
7,555 6,517 38,609 10,546
5,550 8,325 5,550 8,325
5,560 11,110 5,560 11,110
11,110 19,435 E1LE10 19,435
907 19 o07 19
12,017 19,454 12,017 19,454
- - - 2,720
- 114 : 114
- 114 . 2,834
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In Thousand Baht

Consolidated

Separate Financial
Statements

2020

2019

2020

2019

Short-term loans and interest

receivable

Interest receivable

Subsidiaries -
Associate -
Joint venfure -
Short-term loans

Subsidiaries (interest rate at 5.5% -

7% p.a. and due at call} -
Associate (interest rate at 5% p.a.

and due at call) -
Joint venture (interest rate at 7.0% -

7.5% p.a. and due at call) -

141
1,132

1,161

12,600

5,707

184,000

1,826

35,000

Total R

15,034

189,707

36,826

Advance for share subscription
Subsidiary -
Associate -

78,750

78,375

Total -

78,750

78,375

Guarantees on rental and services
for showrooms
Related company -

Guarantees on construction of
power plant project
Associate 20,000

20,000

Other payables
Subsidiary -

6,726

Short-term loan and

interest payable

Interest payable

Subsidiary -
Related person 678
Short-term loans

Subsidiary (interest rate at 7.0%

and 7.5% p.a. and due at call) -
Related person (interest rate at

5.25% p.a. and due at call) _ 53,500

1,596
150

68,500

12,500

793

48,700

Total 54,178

82,746

49,493

Movements of short-term loans to and from related parties during the year are as follows:

Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)

December 31, Movements during the year December 31,
2019 Increase Decrease 2020
Short-term loans to
Green Barth Power (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. [,161 - 1,161 -
Safe Encrgy Holdings Co., Ltd. 12,600 - 12,600 -
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Separate Financial Statement (In Thousand Baht)

December 31, Movements during the year December 31,
2019 Increase Decrease 2020
ECF Holdings Co., Ltd. 35,000 - - 35,000
ECF Power Co., Ltd. - 149,000 - 149,000
Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)
December 31, Movements during the year December 31,
2019 Increase Decrease 2020
Short-term loans
Directar - 113,000 59,500 53,500
Relative of director - 26,000 26,000 -
Separate Financial Statement (In Thousand Baht)
December 31, Movements during the year December 31,
2019 Increase Decrease 2020
ECF Power Co., Ltd. 26,000 62,500 26,000 62,500
Planet Board Co., Ltd. 22,700 119,175 135,875 6,000
Director - 65,000 52,500 12,500
Relative of director - 18,000 18,000 -

6. TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, trade receivables classified by outstanding period are as follows:

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Related companies
Current 4,384 4,945 16,285 6,589
Overdue :
Not exceeding 3 months 3,162 1,559 15,014 3,763
Between 3 months - 6 months - - 7,055 181
Between 6 months - 12 months - - 246 -
Over 12 months 9 13 9 13
Total 7,555 6,517 38,609 10,546
Oiher companies - net
Current 230,667 173,475 220,380 172,544
Overdue ;
Not exceeding 3 months 47,051 56,940 43,603 55,663
Between 3 months - 6 months 16,231 8,720 15,921 8,696
Between 6 months - 12 months 24,762 11,704 24,711 11,704
Over 12 months 9,903 49419 7,037 46,426
Total 328,614 300,258 312,152 295,033
Less Allowance for impairment
for expected credit loss { 4,860) ( 23,458) ( 1,994) ( 21,237
Net 323,754 276,800 310,158 273,796
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company discounted, under factoring, its trade receivables
amounting to approximately Baht 89.7 million and Baht 130.0 million with two local and three local
financial institutions, respectively, (under credit facilities totalling Baht 215 million), whereby such
financial institutions can take recourse action on the Company amounting to approximately Baht 87.5
million and Baht 108.2 million, respectively. The Company presented such amounts of obligation under
the recourse action as “Factoring payables” in the statements of financial position.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting in March 2020, the Board of Directors passed the resolution to
approve the Company to sell a portion of trade receivables, incurred from sales through agents, together
with the related rights in product brand to a non-related company, whose business is engaged in trading
of construction and housshold decoration materials, at carrying amount of Baht 55 million whereby such
trade receivables had carrying amount of approximately Baht 36.2 million and incurred gain on sales of
approximately Baht 18.8 million of which mainly is attributable to payment for the related rights in
product brand whereby the Company has transferred control in the rights for cash collection on trade
receivables and rights in product brand to buyer. Such gain was separately presented in the consolidated
and separate statements of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2020. In addition,
under the related sale-purchase agreement together with relevant letter compromising the debt, the
Company has agreed with buyer to settle the aforesaid price in monthly installments starting from April
2020 to March 2022 with interest charge at the rate 6% p.a. until settlement is completed. As at
December 31, 2020, balance of such receivable from sales of rights carrying for collection within one
year and exceeding one year amounted to Baht 36 million and Baht 12 million, respectively.

In addition, if the Group unexercised the temporary mitigating measures as discussed in Note 4. The
effect on impairment for the expected credit loss of the account “Trade receivables”, if forward-looking
information was, therefore, included in consideration and measurement would increase from the
previously reported balances as at December 31, 2020 amounting to approximately Baht 3.4 million and
Baht 4.1 million in the separate and consolidated financial statements, respectively. Such amounts shall
be recognized in the first quarter of 2021.

7. INVENTORIES - NET

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Finished goods 549,267 382,229 548,832 381,700
Work-in-process 682,739 889,633 682,739 889,633
Raw materials 80,677 66,156 80,677 66,156
Factory supplies 59,525 41,556 59,525 41,556
Inventories in transit 4,110 5,455 4,110 5,455
Total 1,376,318 1,385,029 1,375,883 1,384,500
Less Allowance for diminution
in value of obsolete and slow
moving inventories ( 6,110) { 5,6560) { 6,110 { 5,656)
Net 1,370,208 1,379,373 1,369,773 1,378,844
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the written-down amount of inventory cost to net realizable value
which was recognized as part of cost of sales in the statements of comprehensive income for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounting to approximately Baht 13.0 million and Baht 8.5 million,
respectively.

8. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES OF WHICH RIGHTS DISPOSED TO BE
OTHER INSTALLMENT RECEIVABLES

Previously, this account represented loan to Inter Far Bast Energy Corporation Public Company Limited
(“IFEC”) amounting to Baht 50 million with interest charge at the rate of 6.25% per annum that is
secured by common shares of a subsidiary of IFEC and is in the form of deposit for feasibility study of
investment in the I-Megawait solar power plant project of CR Solar Co., Ltd. (“CRS”), located at
Amphur Thern in Lampang province, whereby CRS is other subsidiary of IFEC. On December 22, 2017,
the Company, IFEC, and CRS entered into the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) for determining
the condition that such loan and related interest receivable will be able to use as deposit on future
settlement of the price on purchase-sale of the business if the Company is satisfied by outcome of the
feasibility study and decides to invest. Such loan had been charged for inferest until all conditions under
such MOU are fulfilled. The Company and TFEC had negotiated and mutually agreed to extend duration
for due diligence process to be within November 30, 2019 as well as duration for entering into purchase-
sale agreement of the business to be within December 31, 2019.

However, the due diligence process has been in progress and cannot be assessed for its completion, the
Board of Directors’ meeting on December 24, 2019, therefore, passed the resolution to approve the
Company to dispose the rights under aforesaid loan agreement as well as related pledge agreement and
MOU to (1) a non-related person who is shareholder of the venturer and director of the Company’s joint
venture and (2) a major shareholder and director of the Company at the portion of two-third and one-
third, respectively, of the balance of loan principal including interest as at December 24, 2019 (totalling
approximately Baht 58.30 million). Such amount is attributable to (1) totalling approximately Baht 38.87
million and (2) totalling approximately Baht 19.43 million. The disposal to (1) and (2) shall be collected
in 7 installments, six-month period per installment, starting from December 2019. Installment for (1) and
(2) amounted to approximately Baht 5.55 million and Baht 2.78 million, respectively. The Company also
charges interest on installments from (1) and (2) at the rate of 6% per annum. Since December 24, 2019,
the Company has not had any rights or agreements in connection with IFEC and the Company is no
longer have intention to continue the due diligence and purchase-sale of the business with CRS. As at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, current portion of “Other installment receivables” to be collected from (1)
and (2) amounted to approximately Baht 11.10 million and Baht 5.55 million, respectively, while non-
current portion amounted to approximately Baht 11,12 million and Baht 3.56 million, respectively.

9. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AT BANKS
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has collateralized its fixed deposits with three local

banks amounting to approximately Baht 51.8 million and Baht 93.9 million, respectively, as guarantees
for its short-term loan facilities with such banks.
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10. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE COST METHOD

Separate Financial Statement

Authorized Share Capital Percentage of Cost of Investment

(In Thousand Baht) Shareholding (In Thousand Baht)

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
VV-Decor Co., Ltd. 1,000 1,000 99.95 99.95 1,000 1,000
ECF Holdings Co., Ltd. 10,000 10,000 75.00 75.00 7,500 7,500
ECF Power Co., Ltd. 687,652 687,652 99.99 99.99 687,652 687,652
Planet Board Co., Ltd. 50,000 50,000 57.00 57.00 7,125 7,125
Total 703,277 703,277

During 2020 and 2019, the subsidiaries did not declare any dividends to the sharcholders.

At the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of subsidiary, i.e. ECF Power Co., Ltd. (“ECF-P”), on
October 8, 2019 and at the Board of Directors’ meeting of the Company on October 9, 2019, the
meetings passed the resolution to approve the increase in authorized share capital of ECF-P amounting to
Baht 140 million (from previously Baht 547.7 million to Baht 687.7 million) which was the increase in
share capital with respect to the existing proportion of the shareholders. ECF-P has increased its share
capital and registered this increase in share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on October 9, 2019.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting on February 27, 2018, the Board of Directors passed the resolution to
approve the investment budget for the increase in Planct Board Co., Ltd. (“PNB”) is authorized share
capital amounting to Baht 400 million (from Baht 50 million to Baht 450 million) to support the MDF
board and particle board manufacturing project whereby such increase in share capital shall be done with
respect to the existing proportion of the shareholders that pertained to the Company’s portion of 57%
amounting to Baht 228 million. Near the end of 2018, the Company paid advance payment for the
incremental shares to PNB amounting to approximately Baht 78.4 million that was still outstanding at the
end of 2019. Subsequently, the Company received such amount from PNB in 2020 because such project
of PNB was discontinued.

Significant financial information in the financial statements for the years 2020 and 2019 of ECF Holdings
Co., Ltd. (“BCF-H”) which included the non-controlling interests at the proportion of 25% is as follows:

In Million Baht

2020 2019
Current assets 17.3 2.5
Non-current assets 01 0.2
Current liabilities 64.5 41.1
Non-cwrrent liabilities - -
Shareholders’ equity (capital deficiency) (47.1) (38.4)
Sales of goods 67.7 23
Other income - -
Loss for the year ( 8.6) ( 4.0)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ( 8.6) ( 4.0
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i

Significant financial information in the financial statements for the years 2020 and 2019 of PNB which
currently included the non-controlling interests at the proportion of 43% is as follows:

In Million Baht
2020 2019
Current assets 13.0 094.0
Non-current assets 4.0 22.2
Current liabilities ‘ 0.8 0.9
Shareholders’ equity 16.2 115.3
. Other income 1.6 3.6
Loss for the year ( 17.1) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year ( 17.1) -

PNB has had a plan to discontinue its project for manufacturing and sales of MDF board and particle
board whereby the Company’s management is during consideration for the appropriate new project in the
future for PNB. Accordingly, a portion of PNB’s fixed assets amounting to approximately Baht 18.1
million was no longer in use and was written-off as expense (approved by the Company’s director) which
is presented as part of “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended December 31, 2020

39



oy

“SIOM TOLONLESHOD JO uona[dwos 21 Ioye openl oq [[eys syuewiAed yey 10ofoxd yons Jo UoNIPUOo Jusuiied aif) 03 }02dSSI YiM opewl
$EA JOJJBI S, "SIOJOBIITO0 UOHONISUOD O} 818 OYM P Auedwon) orqng uoneiodio) BISIA JO SSLIBIPISqNS 0M} 0} NJHL JO JRuUeAJA Ul 309 {oxd yuerd mmod
2[0S 31 JO $1509 TONONJSUOO JO sjustied 50y 9oueIens S8 JHL UL JUOUNSAAUL JO (DOISOAUT SOIBYS SIS S} JO {[B) SOIOLIIIIS0 SIBYS £EF GOS Y SI pasn sBY 4-40d

*6107 PUe 0707 1§ 1oquuesa(] 18 SB uosod [erousuly
JO SjusIISIR)S PRjepI[OSUCS ST} Ul  sosyueiend pue sysoda(y, jo ued se pojuesaid useq seq eomerend yong ‘(seseyd moy (1) 1ue(d 1emod JRJOS 9} JO UOHONLSUOD
30 vonje[duwos uodn S[qepUNya1 ST YOI UOK[IUI "7 1ed O3 Supunoure 21810055 s} o 1uefd 1emod 2[0S 9]} JO UOIONISUOD I0F esjuerens paoeld seq J-I04 ‘6107 UL

“IREIURATA] “90UIA01d NGUIA UT P2IE20] ST UDIYM JAJHD JO 1o0(o1d jurerd remod 1e[os PEMESSW (77 ST U Auedwio) JUSTEZRUEN PUe uproy e se poBedua
SI JAD 1707 Fuunp WOl $ 16 ey Aprewrzordde o) Supunowe uontod s) I0] oI YL Gl 1S9AUL Areuonippe [[2Us d-10d ‘[erdes oIeys uj 95BaI0Ul YoNs 0} SUIPIOOOY
spemedew 7z Jo Aroedes [y Surgoesl [munm saseyd ¢ ojur peyeredss 3¢ [im woloxd o) Agaiaym “(JAJTD,,) parwr] Auedwo) (rewmueiy) 439 ©1 (dID £q PlRY
0400 1) ATRIPISQNS SH JO So[BS 10F Iemod O11joala Ay JO uononposd pue juerd 19mod JO UOIONASUOD UL JISUNSIAUL A} yoddns o7 [exdes aIeys S 9SBRAIOUL [[Ia JHO ‘Inny A1 uf

‘gorI g9/ ey AReunxordde 01 Fupunowe uondiIosqns aIeYs 10F SOUBAPE WO 19JSULL] JO ST
Aq pue uoiIW 7'L77 WEd Aperewxordde 03 Sununowe JHO Ul PoIseAUl AJ[RUOHIPPE J-d0H 0707 1eak oy Suump wonIppe Ul “UOH[RD §¢] ed AJejewnxordde
0] POJUNOWE JB3A STUEs 9Y) IOJ SS0[ oAIsUaYa1dIW0o ISI0 JO OIeYS SBRISTM UOHJIN {°C¢ Jqey Ajarewrsodde 03 pajunowe (707 Teek Y1 10§ JHOH wo Jyoid Jo areyg

00185 121°27L9
- T1L°LTT - 000°18S - LEEE - (. JIVS,) ‘PYI 0D Suipjoy A31euy ofes
EXi P ENN HE._Q.N S.H uEm@Emeﬁw
7611 68£°95¢€ 121°2L9 96.°C1T 91.28TC 0007 00707 (. dFD,,) PIT “0D (Puepiey]) 1040J YHEH UIH
2IRIDCSSD U] TUBUISDALUT
610C 0Z0T 6107 0707 6102 0707 6102 0707
SpUapIAL( SN[BA JUSULSSAU] fede)) areys (d-1Dd) ATepisqus
PRZLIOYINY Aq SurpjoysIeyg
{(yyeg puesnoy ], U[) pAIepI[osuc) JO 98e1ua0I9 ]

QOHLIW ALINOT AL ONISA 04 LINNODDV TININIA INIOL ANV TLVIOOSSY NI INANISTANL  °IT

610T pue 9707 ‘1€ 1quang
(ponunuoy)) SIUIIIEIS [FIOURHL] 03 SION

SATIVIAISIAS SLI ANV TLLIATYT ANVJAO0D DI TAAd HOALINIOA ISVOD LSVH




EAST COAST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31,2020 and 2019

In order to maximize benefits to the Group, in the first quarter of 2020, ECF-P entered into a plan for
sales of the entire investment in SAFE to a venturer of SAFE under the sale-purchase agreement
(including revised version in the third quarter of 2020), jointly arranged with another venturer, with
total price of approximately Baht 233.9 million. The investment value under equity method of SAFE
in that period amounted to approximately Baht 227.7 million which the Group has transferred of such
investment to non-current asset held for sale in the aforesaid quarter. The Group has ceased using the
equity method of accounting on valuation of such investment and used such value as a deemed cost of
the investment which is less than its fair value less cost to sell of approximately Baht 6.2 million (gain
on sales). The aforesaid plan for sales was completed in December 2020. In addition, for reporting of
significant financial information disaggregated by operating segment, such item is categorized under
segment “Other products”.

Significant financial information in the consolidated financial statements for the years 2020 of GEP
and 2019 of GEP and SAFE, which are material to the Group, is as follows:

2020 - In Million Baht

GEP
Current assets (including subscription receivables) 269.8
Non-current assets 3,451.9
Current liabilities 1,765.5
Non-current liabilities 32.6
Revenues 318.7
Profit for the year 181.9
Total comprehensive income for the year 1102
Shareholders’ equity (not deducting subscription receivables) 1,923.6
The Group’s interest at the investment proportion 384.7
Purchase price of investment in excess of the Group’s interest 287.4
Carrying amount of investment in which equity method is applied 672.1

2019 - In Million Baht

GEP SAFE
Current assets 1759 195.3
Non-current assets 2,475.8 8157
Curtrent liabilities 2,283.2 173.8
Non-current liabilities 23.6 1358
Revenues 835.8 2534
Profit for the year ' 134 38.3
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ( 220 383
Shareholders’ equity (excluding non-controlling interests) 3449 680.7
The Group’s interest at the investment proportion 69.0 226.8
Purchase price of investment in excess of the Group’s interest 287.4 0.9
Carrying amount of investment in which equity method is applied 356.4 227.7
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12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)

Beginning Ending
Balance as at Balance as at
January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2020 Addition Deduction Transfer 2020
Cost
Land 162,809 37,229 - - 200,038
Land improvement 9,709 - - - 9,709
Building 184,101 5,684 - 67 189,852
Building improvement 48,053 556 - 84 48,693
Machinery and equipment 365,744 7,629 300 15,393 388,466
Electric system 41,025 2,632 - 5,488 49,145
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 18,258 549 - 4 18,811
Showroom equipment 3] - - - 31
Vehicle 56,396 - - { 7.100) 49,296
Utilities 3,897 - - - 3,897
Construction in progress and
machinery under installation 51,439 47,208 18,128 { 19,676) 60,843
Total Cost 941,462 101,487 18,428 ( 5740) 1,018,781
Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvement 8,960 229 - - 9,189
Building 61,270 9,359 - - 70,629
Building improvement 19,736 3,062 - - 22,798
Machinery and equipment 296,768 18,804 230 6 315,348
Electric system 3,551 4,247 - - 7,798
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 13,888 1,851 - ( ) 15,733
Showroom equipment 20 6 - - 26
Vehicle 46,021 3,470 - { 3,097 46,394
Utilities 3,897 - - - 3,897
Total Accumulated
Depreciation 454,111 41,028 230 ( 3,097) 491,812
Allowance for Empairment
Buildings and building
improvement 2,527 - - - 2,527
Machinery and equipment 2,932 - - - 2,932
Total Allowance for
Impairment 5,459 - - - 5,459
Net 481,892 521,510
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Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

Beginning Eading
Balance as at Balance as at
January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2020 Addition Deduction Transfer 2020
Cost
Land 162,809 37,229 - - 200,038
Land improvement 9,709 - - - 9,709
Building 184,101 5,684 - 67 189,852
Building improvement 48,053 556 - 84 48,693
Machinery and equipment 365,744 7,629 300 15,393 388,466
Electric system 41,025 2,632 - 5,488 49,145
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 17,700 549 - 4 18,253
Vehicle 56,396 - - ( 7,100) 49,296
Utlities 3,897 . - - 3,897
Construction in progress and
machinery under installation 29,453 47,208 - { 19,676) 56,985
Total Cost 918,887 101,487 300 ( 5,740) 1,014,334
Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvement 8,960 2209 - - 9,189
Building 61,270 9,359 - - 70,629
Building improvement 19,737 3,062 - - 22,799
Machinery and equipment 296,763 18,804 230 6 315,348
Electric system 3,550 4,247 - - 7,797
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 13,513 1,728 - { 6) 15,235
Vehicle 46,021 3,470 - ( 3,097) 46,394
Utilities 3,897 - - - 3,897
Total Accumulated
Depreciation 453,716 40,899 230 ( 3,097 491,288
Allowance for Impairment
Buildings and building
improvement 2,527 - - - 2,527
Machinery and equipment 2,932 - - - 2,932
Total Allowance for
Impairment 5,459 - - - 5,459
Net 459,712 517,587

43



EAST COST FURNITECH PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Financia} Statements (Continued)
December 31,2020 and 2019

Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)

Beginning Ending
Balance as at Balance as at
January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2019 Addition Deduction Transfer 2019
Cost )
Land 140,764 - - 22,045 162,809
Land improvement 9,709 - - - 9,709
Building 135,849 - - 48,252 184,101
Building improvement 46,714 848 - 491 48,053
Machinery and equipment 362,855 4,483 1,632 38 365,744
Electric system 3,378 22 - 37,625 41,025
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 17,108 1,438 288 - 18,258
Showroom equipment 2,562 - 2,531 - 31
Vehicle 65,107 700 9,411 - 56,396
Utilities 3,897 - - - 3,897
Construction in progress and
machinery under installation 105,318 54,943 - (108,822) 51,439
Total Cost 893,261 62,434 13,862 ( 37D 941,462
Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvement 8,690 270 - - 8,960
Building 53,115 8,155 - - 61,270
Building improvement 16,639 3,097 - - 19,736
Machinery and equipment 280,890 17,183 1,305 - 296,768
Electric system 2,349 1,202 - - 3,551
Furniture, {ixtures and
office equipment 11,886 2,194 192 - 13,888
Showroom equipment 1,275 223 1,478 - 20
Vehicle 49,666 5,556 9,201 - 46,021
Utilities 3,896 i - - 3,897
Total Accumulated
Depreciation 428,406 37,881 12,176 - 454,111
Allowance for Impairment
Buildings and building
improvement 2,527 - - - 2,527
Machinery and equipment 2,932 - - - 2,932
Total Allowance for
Impairment 5,459 - - - 5,459
Net 459,396 481,892
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Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

Beginning Ending
Balance as at Balance as at
January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2019 Addition Deduction Transfer 2019
Cost
Land 140,764 - - 22,045 162,809
Land improvement 9,709 - - - 9,709
Building 135,849 - - 48,252 184,101
Building improvement 46,714 8438 - 491 48,053
Machinery and equipment 362,203 4,483 980 38 365,744
Electric system 3,378 22 - 37,625 41,025
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 16,262 1,438 - - 17,700
Vehicle 65,107 700 9,411 - 56,396
Utilities 3,897 - - - 3,897
Construction in progress and
machinery under installation 86,566 51,360 - (108,473) 29,453
Total Cost 870,449 58,851 10,391 ( 22) 918,887
Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvement 8,690 270 - - 8,960
Building 53,115 8,155 - - 61,270
Building improvement 16,639 3,098 - - 19,737
Machinery and equipment 280,499 17,119 850 - 296,768
Electric system 2,349 1,201 - - 3,550
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 11,485 2,028 - - 13,513
Vehicle 49,666 5,556 9,201 - 46,021
Utilities 3,896 | - - 3,897
Totai Accumulated
Depreciation 426,339 37,428 10,051 - 453,716
Allowance for Impairment
Buildings and building
improvement 2,527 . - - 2,527
Machinery and equipment 2,932 - - - 2,932
Total Allowance for
Impairment 5,459 - - - 5,459
Net 438,651 459,712

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s land, buikling and building improvement,
machinery and equipment of which carrying amount totalling approximately Baht 357.5 million and
Baht 310.8 million, respectively, were used as guarantees for the credit facilities with financial
institutions as discussed in Notes 15 and 20.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, cost of the Company’s building and building improvement and

equipment which have been fully depreciated but still in use amounting to approximnately Baht 284.3
million and Baht 254.9 million, respectively.
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Depreciation of building and equipment for the year 2020 amounted to approximately Baht 41.0
million in the consolidated financial statements and Baht 40.9 million in separate financial statements
while for the year 2019 amounted to approximately Baht 37.9 million in the consolidated financial
statements and Baht 37.4 million in separate financial statements.

13.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - NET

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

Balance as at Balance as at

January 1, Movements During the Year - December 31,
2020 Increase Decrease 2020
Vehicles and equipment
Cost 5,877 2,000 - 7,877
Accumulated depreciation - 2,543 - 2,543
Net 5,877 5,334
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET
Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)
Beginning Ending
Balance as at Balance as at
January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2020 Addition Deduction Transfer 2020
Cost 9,843 - - 950 10,793
Accumulated amortization  { 9,067) ( 475) - - ( 9,542)
Net 776 ( 475 - 950 1,251
Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)
Beginning Ending
Balance as at Balance as at
January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2019 Addition Deduction Transfer 2019
Cost 10,999 425 { 1,581) - 0,843
Accumulated amortization  ( 8,803) ( 460) 198 - ( 9,067)
Net - 2,194 { 35 ( 1,383) - 776
Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)
Beginning Ending
Balance as at Balance as at
January I, Movements During the Year December 31,
2020 Addition Deduction Transfer 2020
Cost 9,084 - - 950 10,634
Accumulated amortization { 9,005) ( 444) - - { 9,449)
Net 679 ( 444) - 050 1,185
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Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

Beginning
Balance as at

Fnding
Balance as at

January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2019 Addition Deduction Transfer 2019
Cost 9,259 425 - - 9,684
Accumulated amortization  ( 8,647) { 358) - - { 9,005)
Net 612 67 - - 679

Amortization for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to approximately Baht 0.5
million and Baht 0.4 million, respectively, both in the consolidated and separate financial statements,
which was presented as part of “Administrative expenses” in the statements of comprehensive

income.

15. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS FROM

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
In Thousand Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Bank overdrafts 62,863 56,785 62,863 53,904
Loans under packing credits 303,309 215,695 303,309 215,695
Loans under promissory notes 230,000 250,000 230,000 250,000
Loans under trust receipts 5,663 - 5,663 -
Total 601,835 522,480 601,835 519,689

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group had overdraft lines with four local and three local
banks totalling Baht 75 million and Baht 65 million (totalling Baht 60 million for the Company only),
respectively, which bear interest at Minimum Overdraft Rate.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had packing credit facilities with three local and
two local banks totalling Baht 250 million and Baht 280 million, respectively, which bear interest at
lower than Minimum Loan Rate.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had promissory note facilities with three local
banks totalling Baht 330 million and Baht 250 million, respectively, which bear interest ranging
between 4.25% and 6.25% p.a.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019., the Company had trust receipt facilities with three local banks
totalling Baht 123 million and Baht 58 million, respectively, which bear interest at lower than
Minimum Loan Rate.

The abovementioned credit facilities are guaranteed by certain directors and relative of director of the

Company as well as their land and fixed deposits, the Company’s fixed deposits as discussed in Note
9, and the Company’s land, buildings, and machinery and equipment as discussed in Note 12.
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16, SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM OTHER PARTIES

As at December 31, 2020, this account represented short-term loans under bill of exchange, unsecured
and partially secured by the Company’s common shares of totalling 108.1 million held by two
directors and a relative of such two directors, issued by the Company and a subsidiary to several non-
related persons between July to December 2020. These loans bear interest ranging between 6.5% p.a.
and 15.0% p.a. which have maturities not exceeding nine months from the particular issuance dates.

As at December 31, 2019, this account represented short-term loans under bill of exchange, unsecured
and partially secured by the Company’s common shares of approximately 59.7 million held by certain
directors, issued by the Company and a subsidiary to several non-related pessons between June to
November 2019, These loans bear interest ranging between 5.5% p.a. to 6.5% p.a. which have
maturities not exceeding seven months from the particular issuance dates.

17.  ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Other payables 36,932 15,324 34,168 14,704
Accrued advertising and sales

promotion expenses 12,291 12,309 12,291 12,309
Accrued salary, wage, and welfares 8,308 6,373 7,226 6,370
Accrued interest 5,613 7,694 5,613 7,694
Accrued electricity 3,629 2,901 3,629 2,901
Accrued sales discount 1,928 1,237 1,928 1,237
Advances from customers 1,522 4,040 1,522 4,040
Others 4,379 3,855 3,906 3,462
Total 74,602 53,733 70,283 52,7117

i18. DEBENTURES

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

(In Thousand Baht)
2020 2019
Debentures 961,300 990,000
Less Deferred direct transaction costs on debenture issuance ( 11,111 ( 9200)
Net 950,189 980,800
Less Due for payments within one year ( 379,025) ( 605,685
Net 571,164 375,115

On February 16, 2018, the Company limitedly issued and offered the registered, unsubordinated, and
secured debentures to the institutional investors of 699,900 units of which face value per unit is Baht
1,000. Such debentures bear interest rate at 6.5% p.a. whereby interest is payable on a quarterly basis
and matured for redemption on August 9, 2020. The abovementioned debentures have significant
conditions which include maintaining Debt-to-Equity ratio at the rate not exceeding 4:1.
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Later on March 22, 2019, the Company limitedly issued and offered the registered, unsubordinated,
and partially secured debentures to the institutional investors of 200,000 units of which face value per
unit is Baht 1,000, Such debentures bear interest rate at 6.75% p.a. whereby inferest is payable on a’
quarterly basis and matured for redemption on March 22, 2021. The abovementioned debentures have
significant conditions which include maintaining Debt-to-Equity ratio at the rate not exceeding 4:1.

On July 31, 2019, the Company limitedly issued and offered the registered, unsubordinated, and
unsecured debentures to the institutional investors of 180,200 units of which face value per unit is
Baht 1,000. Such debentures bear interest rate at 6.5% p.a. whereby interest is payable on a quarterly
basis and will mature for redemption on July 31, 2021. The abovementioned debentures have
significant conditions which include maintaining Debt-to-Equity ratio at the rate not exceeding 4:1.

On June 12, 2020, the Company limitedly issued and offered the registered, unsubordinated, and
partially secured debentures to the institutional investors of 381,100 units of which face value per unit
is Baht 1,000. Such debentures bear interest rate at 7.25% p.a. whereby interest is payable on a
quarterly basis and will mature for redemption on June 12, 2022. The abovementioned debentures
have significant conditions which include mainfaining Debt-to-Equity ratio at the rate not exceeding
4:1. These debentures are guaranteed by ECF-P’s common share of 38,947,722 held by the Company.

Direct transaction costs on debenture issuance were debenture issuance costs, which were recorded as
deferred item and systematically amortized on a straight-line method as part of finance costs over the
term of related debentures.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, such debentures had fair values of approximately Baht 962.8
miltion and Baht 993.5 million, respectively, which is the Level 2 inputs of the fair value hierarchy.

19. LIABILITY FOR POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Movements of liability for post-employment benefits for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019 are as follows:

Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

(In Thousand Baht)
2020 2019

Liability for post-employment benefits as at January 1 10,687 6,793
Cuwrrent service cost 731 910
Interest cost 196 277
Past service cost - 1,422
Expense recognized as profit or loss in statement of

comprehensive income 927 2,609
Actuarial loss on remeasurement - 1,285
Liability for post-employment benefits as at December 31 11,614 10,687

The abovementioned actuarial loss on remeasurement comprised of (1) loss from experience
adjustment amounting to approximately Baht 3,723 thousand, (2) gain from changes in financial
assumptions amounting to approximately Baht 1,741 thousand, and (3) gain from changes in
demographic assumptions amounting to approximately Baht 697 thousand.
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Significant assumptions used in the calculation of liability for post-employment are as follows:

- Discount rate 2.66% p.a.
- Salary escalation rafe 3.00% p.a.
- Employee turnover rate 8% - 35% p.a.

The abovementioned changes in significant assumptions may affect the sensitivity of the balance of
provision for post-employment benefits in respect of the information as per the calculation report of
the qualified actuary as follows:

Liability may increase (decrease) from
changes in significant assumptions

(In Thousand Baht)
If assumption If assumption
Significant Assumptions increased decreased
Discount rate (increase/decrease by 0.5%) (337) 358
Salary escalation rate (increase/decrease by 0.5%) 427 (403)
Employee turnover rate (increase/decrease by 1%) (895) 1,023

During 2018, the National Legislative Assembly agreed and approved to edit some provisions of the
Labour Protection Act 1998 (B.E. 2541) which include the increase in compensations to be paid to the
employees whose working period have reached 20 years or above from previously equivalent to basic
wage of 300 days to 400 days. Such matter was later legally announced in the early of April 2019 in
order to become effective in the early of May 2019. The Company’s management considered, based
on their judgement, that amendment of such employee benefit plan (amendment of the applicable
laws) occurred and became effective in the second quarter of 2019. Accordingly, the Company
accounted for the past service cost amounting to approximately Baht 1.4 million, resulted from the
plan amendment, in the second quarter of 2019 which was presented as part of cost of sales and
administrative expenses amounting to approximately Baht 0.2 million and Baht 1.2 million,
respectively, in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2019.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the subsidiaries have hired only few numbers of permanent

employees. Accordingly, the subsidiaries have no material obligation to be recognized on the
post-employment benefits.
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20. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
This account represented long-term borrowings from two local banks and a local leasing company in
2020 and two local banks in the separate financial statements and three local banks in consolidated

financial statements both in 2019 which comprised of:

Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)

2020 2019

1) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 40 million, repayable
monthly until September 2022, bear interest at lower than
Minimum Loan Rate 8,993 17,389
2) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 25 million, repayable
monthly until March 2024, bear interest at lower than Minimumn
Loan Rate 106,762 14,362
3) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 20 million, repayable
monthly until January 2021, bear interest at Minimum Loan
Rate 0,895 16,495
4) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 20 million, repayable
monthly until January 2021, bear interest at Minimum Loan
Rate _ 12,095 18,695
5) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 10 million (of the
subsidiary), repayable monthly until March 2021, bear interest

at Minimum Loan Rate - 2,516
6) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 20 million, repayable

monthly until January 2022, bear interest at 2% p.a. 20,000 -

7) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 30 million, repayable

monthly until August 2022, bear interest at 11.105% p.a. 24,226 -
Total 85,971 69,457
Less Current portion { 40,372) ( 27,631)
Net 45,599 41,826
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Separate Financial Statements
(In Thousand Baht)

2020 2019

1) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 40 million, repayable
monthly until September 2022, bear interest at lower than
Minimum Loan Rate 8,993 17,389
2) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 25 million, repayable
monthly until March 2024, bear interest at lower than Minimum
Loan Rate 10,762 14,362
3) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 20 million, repayable
monthly until January 2021, bear interest at Minimum Loan
Rate 9,895 16,495
4) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 20 million, repayable
monthly until January 2021, bear interest at Minimum Loan

Rate 12,095 18,695
5) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 20 million, repayable

monthly until January 2022, bear interest at 2% p.a. 20,000 -

6) Loans under facilities amount of Baht 30 million, repayable

monthly until August 2022, bear interest at 11.105% p.a. 24,226 -
Total 85,971 66,941
Less Current portion ( 40,372) ( 25,115)
Net ‘ 45,599 41,826

The above loans have guarantees as discussed in Note 12. The aforesaid loans 6) is secured by cash
which the Company has deposited with the lender amounting to Baht 6 million, which was presented
as part of “Deposits and guarantees” in the consolidated and separate statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2020.

In addition, the Company must comply with certain covenants and undertakings of these loans e.g.
maintaining Debt Service Coverage Ratio, Debt-to-Equity Ratio, and Current Ratio, etc.

21. LEASE LIABILITIES

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (In Thousand Baht)

Balance as at Balance as at
January 1, Movements During the Year December 31,
2020 Increase Decrease 2020
Vehicles and equipment 4,386 2,000 2,779 3,607

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statemenis

(In Thousand Baht)
- 2020 2019

Lease liabilities

- Due for payments within one year 2,439 1,459
- Due for payments between 2-5 years 1,308 1,155
Total 3,747 2,614
Less Deferred interest ( 140) ( 102)
Lease liabilities - net of deferred interest 3,607 2,512
Less Current portion ( 2,318) ( 1,375)
Net 1,289 1,137
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Lease liabilities decreased during 2020 were attributable to payments.

Amortized interest, which was presented as part of “Finance costs” in the statements of
comprehensive income for the years 2020 and 2019, amounted to approximately Baht 0.2 million.

In 2017, 2019 and 2020, the Company entered into lease and hire purchase agreements for its vehicles
and equipment with four local leasing companies for the periods of 36 and 48 months whereby such
agreements will end during 2021 to 2024.

22. SHARE CAPITAL, PREMIUM ON SHARES AND WARRANTS

Tn Thousand Shares / In Thousand Baht

Par Value 2020 2019

(In Baht) No. of Share At Par Value No. of Share At Par Value

Authorized share capital
As at December 31

- Common shares 0.25 1,196,646 209,162 1,249,848 312,462

Issued and paid-up shares
as at January 1

- Common shares 0.25 959,488 236,872 959,405 239,851

Exercise of warrants 0.25 - - 83

21

As at December 31

- Common shares 0.25 959,488 239,872 959,488 239,872

At the general shareholders’ meeting on July 8, 2020, the shareholders passed the resolutions to
approve and acknowledged the following significant matters:

a. Decrease in the Company’s authorized share capital of Baht 40,100,543.75 (from previously
Baht 312,462,090.75 to Baht 272,361,547.00) by eliminating the unissued 160,402,175
common shares, Baht 0.25 par value. Such common shares comprised of (1) 53,402,175
common shares that were previously appropriated for the exercise of ECF-W2 warrants
whereby the exercise period has ended, (2) 95,000,000 common shares that were previously
appropriated for offering under the Private Placement with General Mandate method and (3)
12,000,000 common shares that were previously appropriated to shareholders for adjustment of
rights of ECF-W3 warrants. Such decrease in share capital was registered with the Ministry of
Commerce on July 21, 2020,

b.  Increase in the Company’s authorized share capital of Baht 26,800,000 (from previously Baht
272,361,547 to Baht 299,161,547) which is divided into 107,200,000 common shares, Baht
0.25 par value. Such incremental common shares shall be appropriated by (1) 95,000,000 shares
for offering under the Private Placement with General Mandate method and (2) 12,200,000
shares to the existing shareholders for adjustment of rights of ECF-W3 warrants whereby this
portion of common shares i§ included 200,000 shares that must be appropriated with respect to
the condition that the Company paid dividends at the portion exceeding 80% of profit for the
year 2018. Such increase in share capital was registered with the Ministry of Commerce on July
23, 2020.
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Section 51 of the Public Limited Companies Act, B.E. 2535 (1992) requires the public company to set
aside share subscription monies received in excess of the par value of the shares issued to a rescrve
account, premium on shates, separated from the reserve account referred to in Section 116 of the
Public Limited Companies Act, B.E. 2535 (1992) (Legal reserve). Premium on shares is not available
for dividend distribution. '

Warrants
The Company issued and offered 194,929,773 units of free warrants (“ECF-W2") to existing

shareholders on October 20, 2017 for the purchase of incremental shares on the basis of 4 common
shares for 1 unit of warrant. Terms of the warrants are as follows:

Exercise ratio 1 unit of warrant to purchase 1 incremental common share
Exercise price Baht 3 per share
Exercise period The warrants shall be exercisable with the first excrcise date on November

25, 2017 and other 5 times, ie. the 25th of February, May, August,
November 2018 and the last exercise date is February 20, 2019.

Term of warrants 1 year and 4 months from the date on which the warrants are issued to the
shareholders

On the same day, the Company issued and offered 129,951,632 units of free warrants (“ECF-W3”)
for the purchase of incremental shares on the basis of 6 common shares for 1 unit of warrant. Terms
of the warrants are as follows:

Exercise ratio 1 unit of warrant to purchase 1 incremental common share
(Adjusted right in April 2019 to 1 unit to purchase 1.0008 common shares)

Exercise price Baht 5 per share
(Adjusted right in April 2019 to Baht 4.9958 per share)

Exercise period The warrants shall be exercisable with the first exercise date on May 25, 2019
and other 7 times, .. the 25th of August and November 2019, February, May,
August, November 2020 and the last exercise date is February 19, 2021.

Term of warrants 3 years and 4 months from the date on which the warrants are issued to the
shareholders :

Subsequently on November 6, 2017, the Stock Exchange of Thailand has granted the Company’s
194,929,773 (BECF-W2) and 129,951,632 (ECF-W3) units of warrants as listed securities and has
permitted such warrants to be traded on the Market for Alternative Investment since November 7,
2017. Details of the exercised ECF-W2 warrants are as follows:
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Number of Date of the
warrants registered
exercised for Proceeds increase in issued
purchases of from the and paid-up
COTITION exercise of Paid-up Premium on Number of share capital with
shares watrants share capital shares unexercised the Ministry of
Exercise Date (Unit) (Baht) (Baht) (Baht} warrants Commerce
November 25, November 30,
2017 20,255,666 60,766,998 5,003,917 55,703,081 174,674,107 2017
February 25, February 27,
2018 31,348,046 94,044,138 7,837,012 86,207,126 143,326,061 2018
May 25, 2018 37,787,808 113,363,424 0,446,952 103,916,472 103,538,253 June 1, 2018
Angust 25, 2018 46,436,851 139,310,553 11,609,213 127,701,340 59,101,402 August 29, 2018
November 25, Pecember 12,
2018 5,624,925 16,874,775 1,406,231 15,468,544 53,476,471 2018
February 24, February 27,
2019 82,475 247,425 20,618 226,807 53,394,002 2019

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the unexercised units of ECF-W3 warrants were 129,951,632, In
addition, presently in February 2021, neither ECF-W2 nor ECF-W3 warranis are listed securities.

23. LEGAL RESERVE

Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires the public company to appropriate
not less than 5% of its annual profit, less accumulated losses brought forward (if any), to a reserve account
(“Legal reserve™) until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the authorized share capital.
The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

24, EXPENSES BY NATURE

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Assemblies, raw materials, and
supplies used 765,168 792,562 757,090 791,916
Employee expenses 238,437 259,661 230,930 259,007
Finance costs 132,918 115,434 134,307 112,228
Depreciation and amortization 44,047 39,965 43,886 39,409
Changes in finished goods and
work-in-process 39,856 (202,085) 39,762 (203,029)
Freight and transportation charges 36,680 37,192 28,025 36,947
Electricity 35,694 35,426 35,694 35,424
Banlk charges 12,873 9,115 11,916 8,779
Repair and maintenance expenses 11,692 11,117 11,692 11,117
Fuels 8,683 10,338 8,683 10,338
Lease {ees attributable to short-term
leases 1,377 1,256 297 1,256
Lease fees attributable to leases of
low-value assets 1,287 1,465 1,287 1,465
Loss (reversal of loss) on impairment
of trade receivables and other
receivables (presented as part of
Administrative expenses) ( 2,408) 23,345 { 3,052) 22,832
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25. INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax recorded as expense (income) for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
consists of:

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Income tax computed from accounting profit 8,442 15,293 7,213 14,292
Effects from non-deductible expenses 10,839 8,636 2,698 7,387
Effects from additional deductible expenses
or non-taxable income ( 3,914) ( 3,522 ( 2,730) ( 1,713)
Effect from utilization of tax loss
carryforward - (356 - -
Effects from reduction in income tax rate
under investment promotion { 5,658) ( 7,316) { 5,658) { 7,316)
Current tax on taxable profit 9,709 13,035 1,523 12,650
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets 3,704 ( 4,894) 3,704 ( 4,894)
Increase (decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 382 { 652) 382 ( 652)
Income tax presented in statement of
comprehensive income 13,795 7,489 5,609 7,104
Increase in deferred tax assets pertaining to
other comprehensive loss - 257 - 257

As at December 31, 2020, a subsidiary had tax loss carryforward of approximately Baht 86.6 million
whereby such loss is able to be used as tax credit during 2021 until 2025.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities presented in statements of financial position as at December 31,
2020 and 2019 consist of:

In Thousand Baht
Separate Financial
Consolidated Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Deferred tax assets
Effects from temporary non-deductible items
or item not yet recognized in accounting

Allowance for diminution in value of

obsolete and slow moving inventories 1,222 1,131 1,222 1,131

Allowance for impairment of trade

receivables and other receivables 1,198 5178 1,198 5,178

Allowance for impairment of building and :

equipment 1,092 1,092 1,092 1,092
~ Liability for post-employment benefits 2,323 2,138 2,323 2,138
Total deferred tax assets 5,835 9,539 5,835 9,539
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In Thousand Baht
Separate Financial
Consolidated Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
Deferved tax liabilities
Effects from temporary non-recognized items
as expense in accounting or taxable income:
Unamortized debenture issuance costs 2,222 1,840 2,222 1,840

Total deferred tax liabilities 2,222 1,840 2,222 1,840

26. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are determined by
dividing profit for the year, attributable to owners of the Company, by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding during the year as follows:

In Thousand Baht / In Thousand Shares

Consolidated Separate Financial Statements
. 2020 2019 2020 2019
Profit for the year, attributable to owners
of the Company 41,160 69,887 30,455 64,349
Basic weighted average number of
outstanding common shares 059,488 959,476 959,488 959,476
Basic earnings per share (Baht) : 0.0429 0.0728 0.0317 0.0670

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are determined by
dividing the profit for the year, attributable to owners of the Company, by the weighted average
aumber of common shares outstanding during the year after adjusting the effect from dilutive
potential common shares as follows:
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In Thousand Baht / In Thousand Shares

Separate Financial
Consolidated Statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company 41,160 69,887 30,455 64,349
Basic weighted average number of
outstanding common shares 959,488 959,476 959,488 959,476
Effect from the right under the exercise
of warrants - - - -
Diluted weighted average number of
outstanding cominon shares 559,488 959,476 959,488 959,476
Diluted earnings per share (Baht) 0.0429 0.0728 0.0317 0.0670

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 were the same amount to
basic earnings per share because the average market price of the Company’s common shares in 2020
and 2019 was less than the exercise price specified in the warrants. Accordingly, there was no virtual
effect from the right under the assumed exercise of warrants that create dilutive potential common
shares.

27.  PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS AND INTERIM DIVIDENDS

At the Board of Directors’ meeting on April 24, 2020 (subsequently acknowledged at the general
shareholders’ meeting on July 8, 2020), the Company’s Board of Directors unanimously passed the
resolution to approve the declaration of interim dividends for the 2019 operations at approximately
Baht 0.0167 per share, totalling approximately Baht 16.0 million, to the shareholders and scheduled
the date for dividend payment on May 22, 2020,

At the general shareholders’ meeting held on April 22, 2019, the sharcholders unanimously approved
the Company to pay dividends for the 2018 operations at approximately Baht 0.030227 per share,
totalling approximately Baht 29.0 million, to the shareholders and scheduled the date for dividend
payment was May 21, 2019.

28. PROMOTIONAL PROVILEGES UNDER INVESTMENT PROMOTION

The Company has been granted promotional privileges pertaining to the promotional certificate on
manufacturing and sales of furniture that is made in the plant installed the system for electricity
generated from the solar power. Such privileges include among others, exemption from import duty
on the imported machinery used in the promoted business and exemption from corporate income tax
on net profit from the promoted business attributable in the extent not exceeding the specified amount
in the promotional certificate for a period of three years from the date income was first derived from
the promoted business i.¢. September 10, 2019.

As a promoted entity, the Company must comply with certain conditions and regulations as specified
in the promotional certificates.
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Operating results classified by the promoted and non-promoted businesses for the year ended

December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Net sales

Other income (including gain on exchange rate)
Cost of sales

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses (including other
eXpenses)

Finance costs

Share of profit from investment

in associate and joint venture

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Net sales

Other income (including gain on exchange rate)
Cost of sales

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Net sales

Other income (including gain on exchange rate)
Cost of sales

Distribution costs

Administrative expenises

Finance costs

Share of profit from investment

in associate and joint venture

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

2020 - Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)

Promoted Non-Promoted
Business Business Total
778,420 606,065 1,384,485
326 40,612 49,938
( 590,547) ( 486,681) ( 1,077,228)
( 18,360) { 43,248) ( 61,608)
( 70,319) (82,044 ( 152,363)
( 74,191) ( 58,727) ( 132,918)
- 35,142 35,142
- ( 13,795) ( 13,795)
25,329 0,324 31,653

2020 - Separate Financial Statement (In Thousand Baht)

Promoted Non-Promoted
Business Business Total
778,420 585,256 1,363,676
326 48,221 48,547
( 590,547) ( 478,509) ( 1,069,056)
( 18,360) (30,189 ( 48,549)
( 70,319) (53,927 ( 124,246)
( 74,191) ( 60,116) ( 134,307)
- ( 5,610) ( 5,610)
25,329 5,126 30,455

2019 - Consolidated (In Thousand Baht)

Promoted Non-Promoted

Business Business Total
240,655 1,013,529 1,254,184
258 36,459 36,717
{ 149,742) ( 734,986) ( 884,728)
( 11,882) ( 62,943) (74,825
( 26,606) { 158,215) ( 184,821)
( 25278) ( 90,156) ( 115,434}
- 10,757 10,757
- ( 2,581) { 2,581
27,405 11,864 39,269
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2019 - Separate Financial Statement (In Thousand Baht)

Promoted Non-Promoted
Business Business Total
Net sales 240,655 1,010,851 1,251,506
Other income (including gain on exchange rate) 258 33,044 33,302
Cost of sales ( 149,742) ( 733,243) ( 882,985
Distribution costs { 11,882) (  62,500) (  74,382)
Administrative expenses ( 26,606) ( 151,663) ( 178,269)
Finance costs ( 25,278) ( 86,950) ( 112,228)
Income tax expense - (  2,196) { 2,196)
Profit for the year 27,405 7,343 34,748

29.  SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL INFORMATION CLASSIFIED BY OPERATING SEGMENT

Sales, other income, cost of sales, other expenses, and profit/loss before income tax expense are
significant financial and core information of the Company and its subsidiaries that are provided
regularly to the highest authority in decision-making operation and also used in evaluation of financial
performances of the segments. The Company and its subsidiaries have two significant operating
segments (identified by internal reporting segments), i.e. (1) wood furniture and particle boards (rubber
wood furniture and particle board furniture) and (2) other segments (e.g. laminating papers, dried sawn
lumbers, furniture-decorating supplies, retail sales of sundry goods and energy business operated by
associate and joint venture) which has been insignificant portion as compared to entire volumes and size
of business activities and, therefore, are insignificant minor segments. The transfers between segments
were accounted for at cost whereby the accounting policies applied to operating segments of the
Company and its subsidiaries are similar to those accounting policies discussed in Note 4. In addition,
the Company and its subsidiaries arc unable to apportion the segment information for assets and
labilities without incurring undue costs.

Information on Products

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated
2020 2019

Net sales

Wood furniture and particle boards 1,334,006 1,203,974

Other products 50,478 50,210
Total 1,384,484 1,254,184
Other income

Wood furniture and particle boards 29,286 32,597

Other products 55,795 14,915
Total 85,081 47,512
Cost of sales

Wood furniture and particle boards 1,034,265 809,129

Other products 42,962 42,415
Total 1,077,227 851,544
Other expenses

Wood furniture and particle boards 306,952 350,711

Other products 39,938 23,083
Total 346,890 373,794
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Information on Products

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated
2020 2019

Profit (loss) before income tax expense

Wood furniture and particle boards 22,075 76,731

Other products 23,373 { 373)
Net ' 45,448 76,358
Information on Geographic Areas

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated
2020 2019

Export sales - net

Japan 629,355 643,142

United States of America 103,053 13,587

India 79,393 15,243

China 37,517 10,667

Philippines 9,247 7,420

Kuwait 4,288 7323

Bahrain 4,202 5,130

Dubai 1,680 -

Malaysia 560 3,275
- Peru - 782
Total 869,295 706,569
Domestic sales - net 515,190 547,615
Total sales - net 1,384,485 1,254,184

Other income, classified by products, included revenues from contracts with other customers, who are
not atfributable to the core businesses. Such revenues had timing of recognition as follows:

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated
Wood furniture and particle boards Other products
2020 2019 2020 2019
At a point in time 11,995 12,313 - -
Over time - - 1,107 1,358

The Group has no any non-current assets located in the countries other than Thailand.
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Information on Key Customers
(customers whose transactions exceeding 10% of total balance of transactions)

Percentage of Balance Attributable to Key
Customers to Total Balance

Consolidated
2020 2019
Net sales
Wood furniture and particle boards 23.88 30.91
Other products - -
Export 36.55 32.52
Domestic - 26.01
Total 22.95 29.68

30. DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT

The Group is exposed to normal business risks relating to liquidity risk, credit risk, foreign currency
exchange rate risk, and interest rate risk. The Group has used derivative financial instruments for
hedging against the foreign currency exchange rate risk without intention for trading or speculation
purposes and there was no significant change in risk management policy relating to financial
instruments and financial during 2020 and 2019.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents including
necessary borrowings as deemed adequate to finance the Group’s normally continuous operations and
to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty is unable or unwilling to meet its financial and
contractual commitments. To mitigate this risk, the Group periodically assess the financial position
and viability of customers and counterparties. The carrying amounts of receivables and loan
receivables presented in the statements of financial position are the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Group has significant business transactions internationally, including import of products and raw
materials as well as export of its products, giving rise to exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. In practical, the Group reduces this risk by matching cash receipt from its customers
(receivables) against cash payment to its suppliers (payables). Since 2009, the Company has started
using forward exchange contracts (buy-sell) to mitigate this risk.
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As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had the outstanding forward exchange contracts
(sell) as follows:

In Thousand
Foreign Currency Fixed Baht

2020 2019 2020 2019

Forward exchange contracts - sell
- U.S. Dollar 54 0.5 1,623 15

In addition, the fair values of forward exchange contracts (sell) outstanding as at December 31, 2020
and 2019 were as follows:

In Thousand Baht
2020 2019
Forward exchange contract - sell
- U.S. Dollar 1,627 15

The forward exchange contracts - sell as at December 31, 2020 had maturities in June 2021.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group had significant outstanding non-hedged foreign
currency asscts and Jiabilities are as follows:

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statement

Toreign Currency Assets Foreign Currency Liabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019
- .S, Dollar 1,632,688 2,579,898 285,106 116,253

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the fluctuation of market interest rates in the futare, which may have a
negative effect to current and future operations and cash flows of the Group. The Group’s
management believes that the interest rate risk is minimal because the Group’s deposits at banks,
other installment receivables, short-term and long-term loan receivables, bank overdrafts and short-
term and long-term loan payables as well as other interest bearing liabilities of the Group bear fixed
rate interest approximated or at the floating market interest rates.

Fair Value Meqsurements

The following assumptions were used by the Group in estimating the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investment, restricted deposits at banks, trade and other
receivables, , short-term and fong-term loan receivables, bank overdrafts, short-term and long-term
foan payables, trade and other payables and lease liabilities have carrying amounts that did not
materially differ from their fair values because these financial assets and liabilities will mature in a
short-term period or bear fixed rate interest approximated or at the floating market interest rates (Level
2 inputs of fair value hierarchy).
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Fair value of debentures, which are stated at the amortized cost, was disclosed as discussed in Note 18,

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Significant objectives of capital management of the Group are to ensure that they have the appropriate
financial structure and fund structure as well as maintaining the financial liquidity and ability to
continue their businesses as a going concern. The Group did not have any significant change relating
to capital management policy during 2020 and 2019.

As at December 31, Debt-to-Equity ratio for the consolidated and separate financial statements was
1.86 ¢ 1.00 in 2020 and 1.70 : 1.00 and 1.72 : 1.00, respectively, in 2019.

32. REGISTERED PROVIDENT FUND

The Company has arranged a contributory registered provident fund in accordance with the Provident
Fund Act, B.E. 2530 (1987). Membership to the fund is on a voluntary basis. Under the plan, the
Company and employees contribute an amount equivalent to 3% of the employees’ basic salaries. The
fund will pay back the provident fund to employees in accordance with the conditions stated in the
policies of provident fund regulations.

The Company’s contribution, which was charged as expense for the years 2020 and 2019, amounted
to approximately Baht 0.2 million and Baht 1.1 million, respectively.

33. SECURITIES TRADING ACCOUNT OF THE COMPANY

The Company was approved by the Board of Directors’ meeting on December 20, 2018 to open the
securities trading account for debt instruments and equity instruments with two local securities
companies whereby the amounts for debt securities amounted to Baht 50 million and for equity
securities amounted to Baht 1. The Managing Director or any other persons designated by the
Managing Director is authorized to open the account, execute the securities trading, sign the
documents to purchase-sale-transfer of the Company’s securities, and change the amounts between
debt securities and equity securities.

34, JINVESTMENT IN SHORT-TERM DEBT SECURITIES
As at December 31, 2019, this account represented investment under bills of exchange, unsecured, of

a local securities company that bear interest at 3.0% p.a. and had maturities not exceeding six months
from the particular issuance dates.
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35. OTHERS
As at December 31, 2020;

a. The Company had letters of guarantee jssued by four local banks to three private companies
and a government agency totalling approximately Baht 30.0 million;

b.  The Company had commitment on purchase of land, construction of office building,
construction of warehouse and improvements of infrastructure systems amounting to
approximately Baht 6.0 million, Baht 46.1 million, Baht 28.0 million and Baht 9.2 million,
respectively (excluding value-added tax);

c. The Company had advance amounting to Baht 70.0 million for purchase of investment in
common shares of a local company, whose business is engaged in electricity generated from
wind power, from shareholder of such company who is non-related person to the Company.
Such purchase of investment was approved in the Company’s Board of Directors’ meeting on
September 10, 2019 in total amount of not exceeding Baht 200.0 million;

d. The Company had unused letters of credit with a local bank amounting to approximately Baht
6.1 million;

e. The Company has been during feasibility study on investment project relating to biomass
power plant located in Saga prefecture of Japan with a condition that the refundable deposit of
Baht 100 million shall be paid to the project owner as part of the process for such feasibility
study whereby such deposit will be refunded in case the Company ot the Group finally dectdes
not to invest in the project. In 2018 and 2019, the Company partially paid such deposit
amounting to Baht 75 million and Baht 25 million, respectively (totalling Baht 100 million).

36, LOANSTO OTHER PARTIES

As at December 31, 2020, this account represented the unsecured loans of the Company and a
subsidiary given to a non-related person (interest at 7% p.a.) which is due at call.

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of subsidiary (“ECF-P”)on January 4, 2021, the
shareholders unanimously passed the resolution to approve the increase in authorized share capital of
ECE-P amounting to Baht 221,630,000 (from Baht 687,652,500 to Baht 909,282,500) by issuing
22,163,000 common shares, Baht 10 par value. The first call for share subscriptions is scheduled at
Baht 6 per share (60%), totalling Baht 132,978,000, to be paid for the first payment of this increase in
share capital within Janvary 12, 2021.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting on February 25, 2021, the Board of Directors passed the
resolutions to approve the following significant matters which will be proposed for approval in the
upcoming shareholders’ meeting to be held in April 2021:

a. Declaration of dividends for the 2020 operations at Baht 0.0125 per share, totalling
approximately Baht 12 million, and scheduled the date for dividend payment on May 21,
2021.
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b. Decrease in the Company’s authorized share capital of Baht 59,289,649.50 (from previously
Baht 299,161,547.00 to Baht 239,871,897.50) by eliminating the unissued 237,158,598
common shares, Baht 0,25 par value.

c. Increase in the Company’s authorized share capital of Baht 47,974,379.50 (from previously
Baht 239,871,879.50 to Baht 287,846,277.00) which is divided into 191,897,518 common
shares, Baht .25 par value. Such incremental common shares shall be appropriated to support
the issuance of free ECF-W4 warrants of 191,897,518 units to the existing shareholders on the
basis of 5 common shares for 1 unit of warrant. Other details of ECF-W4 warrants shall be
considered and approved in the shareholders’ meeting.

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements have been approved to be issued by the Company’s Board of
Directors’ meeting on February 25, 2021.
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